

Ubuntu – "I am because we are." Family Handbook 2023-2024

 3980 Meadows Drive, Indianapolis IN 46205

 Phone: (317) 550-3363
 Fax: (317) 536-3845

www.avondalemeadowsms.org



"Together, WE are AMMS"

We warmly welcome you to Avondale Meadows Middle School (AMMS)! We are very excited to have you as part of our school family because we believe that our very existence is a result of relationships with people just like you. The first school in our network, Avondale Meadows Academy, opened in 2006 in response to the need of the community. AMMS also opened as a response to the need of families. It is our history with the community, families, and students that created our motto, "I am because we are." We are family, and we look forward to working alongside you as partners in your child's education.

While your child is with us, they are our first priority. It is important to us to know each and every one of our students. We want to recognize them for their strengths and the traits that make them unique. Middle school can be a difficult time for many children, therefore we want for our students to know exactly what their strengths are and how they are able to give our school community and to the larger community. Above all else, students at AMMS will know that they are loved.

It is this love for our students that drives us to ensure that we are delivering high-quality instruction. AMMS graduates will be prepared to attend the best high schools in Indianapolis. Our rigorous standards and constant push for academic excellence should allow our students to have the options and opportunities to make the best choices for high school and beyond. Our school culture will create a foundation of confidence so that they will be able to speak about their strengths and abilities.

Again, we cannot do this life-changing work without you. Families have been our motivation and purpose from the very beginning. We look forward to working with you to ensure success for our young people on their journey towards achieving their dreams.

Dr. Mark Simon Principal

Table of Contents

Avondale Meadows Middle School Overview	5
United Schools of Indianapolis	6
The Mission of AMMS	7
The Eagle Code of Conduct	7
AMMS Student Creed	8
USI Board of Directors	8
Anti-Discrimination Policy	8
Attendance Procedures and Policy	9
Procedures for Reporting Absence	9
Makeup Work	9
Truancy Policy	10
Absence Policy	10
Tardy Students	11
Tardy Policy	11
Student Drop-Off	12
Morning and Afternoon Supervision	12
Early Dismissal	12
Student Dismissal	13
Late Pick-Up Fees	13
Meals	13
Invoices	13
Book Rental	14
Insufficient Fees	14
Academic Dishonesty	14
Homework Policy	14
AMMS' Academic Program	15
Curriculum Overview	16
Promotion/Retention Policy	16
AMMS Grading Scale	17
School Books	17
Supplies	17
Assessments	18
Special Education Services	19
Staying Up on Your Child's Academic Progress	20
Midterm Progress Reports	20
Parent Teacher Conferences	20
Report Cards	20
AMMS Core Values	21
Classroom Rules and Expectations	21
Discipline Policy	21

Consequences	22
Office Referrals	22
Detention	22
Friday/Saturday School	23
Suspension	23
Expulsion Procedures	23
Cell Phone and Electronic Device Policy	24
Dress Code	25
Parent Involvement Outreach and Communication	26
Overall Outreach and Communication	27
Lost and Found	29
Emergency Procedures	29
Accidents	29
Child Abuse/Neglect Protocol	29
Emergency Drills	30
School Closings or Delays	30
Health Policies and Procedures	30
Admissions to AMMS	33

Appendices

- A. Anti-Bullying Policy
- B. Student Discipline Polices
- C. Computer/Internet Policy
- D. Visitor/Volunteer Opportunities & Contract
- E. FERPA: Students Rights and Responsibilities
- F. Title 1 Documents
- G. Walker Policy & Release
- H. Indoor Air Quality Policies
- I. Weapons Policy
- J. Technology Use Agreement
- K. 2023-2024 School Calendar

Avondale Meadows Middle School Overview

The Avondale Meadows Middle School (AMMS) is a tuition-free, 5th through 8th grade public charter school. Our community includes a diverse collection of families, educators and volunteers committed to equipping our students with the strongest possible preparation for success in Indianapolis's most demanding, college-preparatory high schools. Avondale Meadows Middle School is a member of the United Schools of Indianapolis Network.

AMMS employs a rigorous and engaging curriculum aligned to Indiana state standards. Our teachers use a wide breadth of effective instructional strategies, innovative tools and technology and a variety of services to challenge and support students to meet ambitious academic goals. We find creative, engaging ways to involve parents in our work, helping students build not only the academic skills but also habits of curiosity, kindness, focus and persistence traits that are essential to achievement of college aspirations and life success.

Finally, AMMS is part of the United Schools of Indianapolis network of schools and benefits greatly from the continued support, collective knowledge and resources of a broad array of local leaders committed to "Making Magic in the Meadows," the neighborhood we are working to transform through the power of great schools.

School Contact Information

Avondale Meadows Middle School 3980 Meadows Drive Indianapolis, IN 46205

Main Office: 317-550-3363 Fax: 317-536-3845

www.avondalemeadowsms.org

School Colors:	Navy and Gold
Mascot:	The Eagle
Core Values:	Character Service Scholarship
Priorities:	Provide an engaging and rigorous learning experience Create a values based culture of excellence Offer a world class customer experience for our families and guest Make meaningful contributions of time, talents, & treasure within our community

Note: AMMS reserves the right to make changes in the *Avondale Meadows Middle School Family Handbook* at any time.



Purpose Statement:

The purpose of United Schools of Indianapolis is to provide an equitable education to prepare all students for college and beyond while leaving a lasting impact in the communities we serve.

Core Values:

Excellence: We set and reach high expectations. *Relationships:* We build and maintain trusting relationships *Growth Mindset:* We are committed to continuous improvement. *Integrity:* We consistently do what is right even when it is difficult.

School Culture Vision:

- We create an environment that is safe, orderly and organized.
- We provide a positive environment where scholars, teachers, and families are supported.
- All interactions within the school community are respectful.
- We establish high expectations for all stakeholders and hold one another accountable to those expectations.
- We develop a classroom culture where scholars are engaged and enjoying academic challenges.

Instructional Vision:

- We teach a rigorous, standards-based curriculum.
- We sustain student attention.
- We have a warm and structured environment for learning.
- We engage students by pushing the thinking and doing onto them.
- We respond to data in the moment.
- We are professional and prepared.

The Mission of AMMS

The mission of Avondale Meadows Middle School is to provide a rigorous and relevant collegepreparatory program, grounded in our belief that every child can succeed at high levels. With an understanding of the strengths each student has, we reinforce that every individual has a part in our family's success. United, our students will consistently meet and exceed academic standards.

The Eagle Code of Conduct

The eagle is a symbol of courage, strength, dignity, and truth. At AMMS we are committed to supporting our students to live out the Eagle Code of Conduct. The Eagle Code of Conduct is designed to mold, fashion, and develop the character of our students so that they are ready to take flight and ascend to new heights in any endeavor of their lives.

Personal Conduct Every Eagle Will	Peer to Peer Conduct Every Eagle Will	Parent and Guest Conduct <i>Every Eagle Will</i>
Stayed focused and engaged in dialogue or discussion.	Celebrate a classmate when appropriate.	Is respectful when responding to adults.
Will celebrate when fellow scholars win, be celebrated when they win.	Respect other students' comments, opinions and ideas.	Always say thank you when given something.
Be inquisitive and attentive in conversation.	Shows and gives respect to their fellow scholars.	Appreciate the gift and the giver, when given something.
Cover their mouth when sneezing or coughing and say excuse me.	Encourages their peers to do what's right, even when no one is looking. Remember that what they say to	Encourages others by performing random acts of kindness.
Will not expect, but be thankful when awarded.	each other should be positive, encouraging, and upinting.	Makes their best effort to remember the names of teachers and staff, and greets them by
Makes organization a priority and growth focus area.	Apologizes when they have wronged someone and gives them space, both physically and mentally, to process their feelings	name. Greet visitors and make them feel
Stand up for what they believe in and self advocates.	and thoughts.	welcome within our community.
Has the audacity to dream big.	Con A	Shake hands and repeat their names, when meeting new people.
Seeks out the joys of life and a pathway to attaining their dreams.		Take only their fair share.
Learn from their mistakes and move on.		Hold the door for people rather than letting it close on them.

Seeks to be honest, even when it is challenging.	Say excuse me, when someone bumps into you, even if it was not your fault.
Sets the goal of being great and doing great things every single day.	

AMMS Student Creed

Each day, our students and staff will recite the AMMS Student Creed. It is a reminder and a promise to each other as to the ways in which we must act and treat every member of our community and House as we strive to be the best middle school in Indianapolis and Indiana. Our student creed is as follows:

As a member of the Avondale Meadows family, It is my daily duty to soar to new heights. When I learn, I am in a better position to teach. I will share the knowledge I gain with those around me. When I share, our family unit becomes strong. Strong families serve strong communities. Here at Avondale Meadows Middle School, we learn together, We grow together, we win together.

United Schools of Indianapolis School Board of Directors

Bill Harris, Board Chair Alex Choi Michael Mason Mike North Aaron Williamson Madeline Priest Sarah Lofton Jacob Crouch Abby McDonough Ross Ridge

*Contact information is available for each board member through the AMMS Office and/or website.

Board of Directors Meetings

The USI Board of Directors holds the charter to AMA, sets the policies of, and governs the terms by which the charter is issued. Board meetings are generally the fourth Monday of every other month held every other month at 4pm and are open to the public, with the exception of executive sessions. Notices for the meetings are posted on the front of the school 48 hours prior to each meeting. Please visit our website for the Board meeting schedule.

Anti-Discrimination Policy

It is the role of AMMS to provide a safe and secure learning environment for all its students without distinction based on race, religion, ethnicity, disability, gender, or sexual orientation. Discrimination, sexual and bias-motivated harassment, and violations of civil rights disrupt the educational process and will not be tolerated; any act of this nature will result in disciplinary action.

Attendance Procedures and Policy

Students are expected to be in school on time every school day. According to State Law (Indiana Code 20-33-2), parents/guardians are accountable for the attendance and education of their children. As a staff, we miss your child every day that he/she is not with us, and, of course, your child misses valuable instruction every moment that he/she is not in the classroom. As a school, we are committed to having a strong attendance track record (95% or more each day) as good school attendance is central to the success of every child and our school as a whole.

Students may need to miss school due to illness, death in the immediate family or other "acceptable cause" (i.e. hospitalization or required religious observance). In order for an absence to be excused, parents are required to communicate with the front office via phone, writing or in person. In the case where a student is absent for 3 or more consecutive days, a doctor's statement will be required as a condition of classifying the absence as excused. Personal and family vacations will not be considered excused absences.

Procedure for Reporting an Absence:

As a school community, we require a couple things of families and take a number of steps as a staff to make sure we stay in close contact when a child misses school.

- If a child is absent from a day of school or will arrive after 9AM, we ask parents to contact the AMA office (803-3182) by 9AM and let us know your child will not be with us that day.
- *In order for an absence to be excused*, the illness must be verified by a note from the parent/guardian or physician upon the child's return to school, stating the reason and date(s) of their absence upon their return.
- If a child misses two or more consecutive days, his/her teacher will call the child's home in order to help make up for any missed lessons.
- If a child misses three consecutive days, our teachers relay that information to our School Counselor who assumes responsibility for communication with the child's family and daily follow up until the child returns to school.

Make-up Work

Students are expected to complete all work before leaving or immediately upon their return from an absence. In the case of illness or other unexpected absence, students or their families should contact their teachers via email or phone to obtain their

missed assignments. It is the responsibility of the student and parent to ensure make up work is completed.

Truancy Policy:

As stated by law (I.C. 20-33-2-3.2), students are required to attend school on a regular basis. Being absent from school for one day, or even from one class period, without acceptable cause is truancy. Any of the following fits the state's description of habitual truancy (I.C. 20-20-8-8):

- Ten (10) or more unexcused absences or 15+ tardy days before end of school year
- Failure of parent/guardian to ensure that his/her child attends school without acceptable reason as required by law

• Chronic absenteeism includes students absent from school for ten percent or more of a school year for any reason (equivalent to 18 AMA school days) and will result in referral to juvenile court or the department of child services.

Absence Policy

In the event we determine a child to be habitually absent from school or truant (according to the criteria above), the VAR staff will take the following steps:

- Three (3) or more unexcused absences parents/guardians receive an email reminding them of our attendance policy and our concern about their child's attendance.
- Five (5) or more unexcused absences school counselor meets with student and follows up with a possible phone call home to identify barriers and strategies to remove obstacles. A letter is mailed home outlining attendance policy and possible next steps.
- Seven (7) or more unexcused absences a school administrator will schedule an Attendance Improvement Conference to create a plan with the family to improve school attendance.
- Nine (9) or more unexcused absences in a school year, the student, and parent/guardian, will be assigned a Friday/Saturday School to make up for the time that has been missed due to absences.
- Ten (10) or more unexcused absences, the school is required under I.C. 20-3302-25 to report the pattern of absences to "an intake officer of the juvenile court or the department of child services" (Child Protective Services or the Marion County Prosecutor's Office).
- **Twelve (12)** or more unexcused absences in a school year, a secondary report for Failure to Ensure will be filed.
- **Fifteen (15)** or more unexcused days of school, a recommendation for an Expulsion Hearing may be filed by the school principal.

Consecutive Absences:

- Two (2) or more consecutive absences the homeroom teacher calls home to check in on the student.
- Three (3) or more consecutive absences a support staff member calls home to remind family of the need to bring a doctor's note to excuse absences 3 or more.
- Four (4) or more consecutive unexcused absences school counselor calls home
- Five (5) consecutive absences school administrator calls home. If no return correspondence from the family during the 5 days the school will conduct a home visit or call for a wellness check.

Special circumstances may require that we adapt this policy to best address the needs of a specific student and family. We strongly encourage families to contact the School Counselor, if circumstances make it difficult for a child to attend school on a regular basis.

Tardy Students:

It is crucial to the success of most students that they arrive on time and, thus, are in a position to make a strong start to the school day. In nearly every classroom at AMA, teachers work with students on literacy skills - the foundation of school success - first. Consequently, when students arrive on time they are also well positioned to develop a strong foundation in reading and writing.

If your child arrives after 8:15 they are considered tardy and they must report first to the office to get a tardy pass before they proceed to the classroom. They must present that tardy pass to their teacher.

Our School Counselor will contact the family of students with 5 or more tardies during the school year. Students (and their parents) with 10 or more tardies must meet with the school administration to work out a plan to address this problem. Students with more than 20 tardy days may be referred to the state's Truancy Office or CPS.

Tardy Policy:

In the event we determine a child to be habitually tardy from school or truant (according to the criteria above), the school staff will take the following steps:

- Five (5) or more unexcused tardies parents/guardians receive a letter reminding them of our attendance policy and our concern about their child's attendance.
- Ten (10) or more unexcused tardies school counselor meets with student and follows up with a phone call home to identify barriers and strategies to remove obstacles. A second letter is sent home outlining attendance policy and possible next steps.
- Twenty (20) or more unexcused tardies a school administrator will schedule an Attendance Improvement Conference to create a plan with the family to improve school attendance.
- **Twenty-five (25)** or more unexcused days of school, a recommendation for an Expulsion Hearing may be filed by the school principal.

Student Drop-Off

Vehicles are not permitted to be left unattended in this zone. All other vehicles are to park in the identified parking spots if parents/guardians wish to walk their children to the classroom.

Note: In picking up or dropping off students, please be courteous to fellow parents and guardians who require *handicapped parking access*. If you are parked in a handicapped parking space and do not have appropriate handicapped signage displayed in/or on your vehicle, you will be ticketed by the police. A second offense may result in your vehicle being towed.

Students may enter the building at 7:40 a.m. Once students arrive at school they are not permitted to leave the school grounds for any reason without escort by their parent/guardian, and without being signed out.

Students arriving after 8:00 a.m. are tardy and must enter the main entrance and report directly to the Main Office. They will receive a "tardy/late pass" from the office, which they will need to enter the classroom. Late arrival to school is counted against student attendance under Indiana law.

To ensure the safety of staff and students, parents/visitors are not permitted in the building during student drop off. Appointments are not made during morning arrival time.

Morning/Afternoon Supervision

Each school day, the YMCA offers before and after school care to all AMMS students. The YMCA program meets regularly in our gymnasium. For safety reasons, we ask that parents accompany their child to the gymnasium and sign in their child if participating in the YMCA's before-school program. Parents may not drop off their children outside of school. It is not safe, and failure to do so will result in dismissal from the program.

Parents are required to register their child for the YMCA program and pay a **per child fee** to participate. Students must have a registration form on file with the YMCA to participate. Students not participating in the program may enter the building at 7:40 a.m. from the front entrance (facing Meadows Drive) or the side entrance (facing Meadows Parkway, across from Tindley) drop-off areas.

Early Dismissal

In the event of an early dismissal, parents (or other authorized caregiver) must sign their child out at the office. With that, the office will contact the teacher and the student will be sent to the office for early dismissal. We ask that parents send a note or email to the child's teacher on the day of the early dismissal to ensure the child is ready on time.

We do not allow students to be dismissed early between 2:30-3:00, and school doors will remain closed during this time. This is done with student safety in mind as there is much transition throughout the building at this time. Early dismissal this close to the end of the day can also distract teachers from their work preparing students for dismissal. We ask for parents' cooperation in respecting this rule, as it is something we must enforce to ensure our school remains safe for all children.

Dismissal

Dismissal times are staggered from 3:00-3:30pm. Specific times will be sent in the back to school communication packet in July. Dismissal will take place with a pick up line and utilizing the PikMyKid app. To ensure the safety of all children, no one will be permitted in the buildings from 2:30-4:00pm.

Any student still with us after 3:45PM will be walked down to the gymnasium to join the YMCA after-school program so that they can be supervised until their ride arrives.

On Fridays, dismissal is from 1:00-1:30pm. Students must be picked up by 1:45pm. Late fees will be accrued for any student that is picked up after 1:45pm.

Staff members are all busy supervising students during dismissal. If you would like to speak with a staff member during or after dismissal, please reach out via phone or email to set up a meeting.

Students will not be released to ride in a taxi or rideshare program (Uber, Lyft, Yellow Cab, etc) without an authorized adult in the vehicle.

Late Pick-Up Fees

AMMS charges families \$1.00 per minute to supervise children after 3:50 PM. The fees AMMS collects from a family for picking up a child late will go directly to our After-School Care provider and will not

be waived. This partnership helps to ensure students picked up late are supervised and safe while waiting on their parents to retrieve them.

In the event we determine a parent to be habitually late from picking up their child after school or a school event, a referral will be made to juvenile court or the department of child services.

AMMS reserves the right to turn any delinquent accounts over to collections. Parents/guardians will be responsible for and expected to pay any additional fees incurred in the collections process

School Meals

AMMS currently qualifies for the Community Eligibility Program through the state of Indiana, which provides free breakfast and lunch for all students.

AMMS students are offered a nutritious breakfast in the morning and lunch during the afternoon daily. *Students who receive a school lunch, are not permitted to bring additional items (ie chips, soda, candy, etc)*. Lunches packed from home must include nutritious items and may not include soda. *No outside food delivery services are permitted for students.*

Invoices

Accounts statements will be sent home regularly to students who have incurred a fee. Payment is due upon receipt and may be paid via cash, check or credit card. If you have moved, please remember to update your information with the front office.

AMMS reserves the right to turn any delinquent accounts over to collections. Parents/guardians will be responsible for and expected to pay any additional fees incurred in the collections process

Insufficient Fees

Checks that are returned to AMMS are subject to the Insufficient Fee (ISF) charge of \$35 plus the product purchased. Accounts with insufficient fees must be paid right away, regardless of the amount owed. Furthermore, AMMS will not honor any future checks if the fee is not paid within 14 days from the date of notification. After two returned checks, AMMS will no longer accepts checks from that family or individual.

AMMS reserves the right to turn any delinquent accounts over to collections. Parents/guardians will be responsible for and expected to pay any additional fees incurred in the collections process

Academic Dishonesty

Cheating on tests or quizzes, copying papers, lying to school personnel about the origin of an assignment, forging signatures of teachers or parents, and/or plagiarism will not be tolerated. The consequence to any of these actions will be a disciplinary referral that may result in academic penalties such as a reduction in grades of loss of privileges or suspension.

Homework Policy

Homework is given out on a consistent basis, it serves one of four purposes:

- 1. To give students needed practice on skills and concepts taught in the classroom.
- 2. To discover what a student knows about a topic before it is taught.
- 3. To introduce a topic before encountered in class.
- 4. To review previously taught material.

When homework is assigned, teachers will review said assignment with the student, along with the purpose of the assignment.

Homework reinforces responsibility and independence for our students and gives them life-long habits that bring academic success. To prepare our students for rigorous academics, competitive high schools, and college academic work, students must develop good homework habits.

Homework grades are given according to completion and quality. Assignment feedback will be given in class in the following ways:

- \Box Self-graded assignments using an answer key.
- Student reflection on what I did well, what I struggled with, and what I need help with.
- \Box Selected problems reviewed in class.

Students should be reading every night. Most nights they will also have math and writing homework as well as science and social studies. Students can expect to have up to 90 minutes of homework each night. Because of our belief that homework not only reinforces skills that are taught but also helps to create a strong work ethic in students, completion of homework and quality of homework is weighted in determining students' grades.

AMMS' Academic Program

The school year is 182 days long. It is divided into four quarters; each is approximately 45 days in length. In order to keep parents updated on their child's progress, AMA teachers send home with each student a mid-term progress report half-way into each quarter and a report card one week after the close of each

quarter. Teachers also schedule two Parent/Teacher Conferences during the year – one in early October and another in late March. Below are listed the important dates in each quarter.

2023-2024 Academic Schedule

Quarter 1 August 1 September 5 September 29 October 6	First Day of School Midterm Progress Reports Sent Home End of 1st Quarter Parent/Teacher Conferences; Quarter 1 Report Cards
Quarter 2 October 17	Quarter 2 begins
November 10	Midterm Progress Reports Sent Home
December 21	End of 2nd Quarter
January 12	Quarter 2 Report Cards
Quarter 3	
January 9	Beginning of 3rd Quarter
February 12	Midterm Progress Reports Sent Home
	(Potential Retention Letters for Selected Students)
March 8	End of 3rd Quarter
Quarter 4	
March 4-15	IREAD Assessment (Grade 3 Only)
March 11	Beginning of 4th Quarter
March 22	Parent/Teacher Conferences; Quarter 3 Report Cards
April 15 - May 10	ILEARN Testing Window (Grades 3-8)
May 23	Last Day of School
May 31	Final Report Cards Mailed

Curriculum Overview

AMMS curriculum promotes academic, physical, social, emotional, and ethical growth – grounded in the Indiana Academic Standards. Our faculty nurtures the building of self-esteem at every opportunity – inside or outside the classroom, encourages learning and achievement, and fosters a positive, caring attitude toward others by emphasizing and nurturing the importance of character, service, and scholarship – values we refer to as the AMMS Core Values.

The Indiana Academic Standards will be the basis for the core of instruction in all of the academic components. Each student will be given the opportunity to master the standards in all content areas. The objective of the school curriculum is to equip students with the knowledge necessary to master life, prepare students for success in college, inspire a lifelong love of learning, and foster responsible citizenship. We emphasize reading, writing, abstract reasoning, and math skills; however, on the whole, the AMMS curriculum is designed to establish a balanced, well-rounded education and the development of the whole child.

Promotion/Retention Policy

AMMS believes all students can and should be on grade level academically, and we are committed to preparing all scholars to be successful, contributing members of society. AMMS believes that in working together with families, all students can be academically successful and demonstrate mastery of the content being covered. It is always the intention of AMMS to take a proactive approach to scholar success. AMMS is committed to on-going dialogue with families to ensure they are up to date with their scholar successes and challenges, and what they can do to reinforce learning in the home. If in the event that interventions do not reflect adequate growth via grades and/or assessments, scholars may be considered for retention.

Description	Letter Grade & Percentages
	A+ 97 - 100%
Above Grade Level	A 94 – 96% A- 90 – 93%
	B+ 87 - 89%
At Grade Level	B 84 - 86% B- 80 - 83%
	C+ 77 – 79%
Approaching Grade Level	C 74 – 76% C- 70 – 73%
Below Grade Level	D+ 67 - 69% D 64 - 66% D- 60 - 63% F 0 - 59%

AMMS Grading Scale

School Books

Within the first days of school, teachers will distribute textbooks and other essential resources to students. These books are provided to students on loan and may include hardcover and softcover books, as well as workbooks. Students will be assessed a rental charge for use of the text/materials during the academic year. Student text/material fees are as follows:

We expect that students will treat all books with respect and will keep them in good condition through the end of the year. Students will be instructed to write their names in ink on the inside front paper cover; otherwise, they may not write in books unless explicitly instructed to do so by a teacher. If a student loses or damages a book (beyond general wear and tear), his/her parents and/or guardians will be notified via a letter. If the book is not found or replaced the student's account will be charged accordingly.

Supplies

A supply list is included in the introduction packet prior to the start of school. Students are expected to bring basic supplies, which differ by grade level, to school. Please contact our office or website (www.avondalemeadowsms.org) for an extra copy of your child's supply list.

Assessment

At AMMS, we assess students continuously in order to monitor their progress toward clear learning goals. Teachers at AMMS assess students in many ways, depending on the subject, the grade and the goals of a specific lesson. Following is a short description of various types of assessment tools used at the school.

ILEARN

Like schools across the state, AMMS administers ILEARN measures student achievement and growth according to Indiana Academic Standards. ILEARN is the summative accountability assessment for Indiana students in grades 3-8 and assesses:

- □ English/Language Arts (Grades 3-8)
- □ Math (Grades 3-8)
- \Box Science (Grades 4 and 6)
- □ Social Studies (Grade 5)

NWEA

AMMS administers the NWEA assessment on a similar set of skills as those included on the ISTEP. Students take the NWEA test on the computer, as the assessment is an "on-line national assessment," Students take the NWEA in the fall, winter and spring of each academic year and, thus, present teachers with important information as to the skills and progress of students over the course of the school year.

Benchmark Assessments

AMMS students will take quarterly benchmark assessments to measure their academic performance.

Academic Support and Intervention

Staff members at AMMS are committed to offering each child the resources and opportunities that he/she needs to succeed in our school and make a strong start on their pathway to college. We believe deeply in the potential of each child to achieve our ambitious goals and have developed a range of supports to help all learners succeed; still, we know from experience that different students require different levels of support to meet their academic goals.

We organize support for different students at AMMS in tiers, defined by the frequency or intensity of support that they receive.

Tier One: Classroom teachers provide individualized assistance to different students based on their skills and growth areas. For instance, if students need extra help in problem solving or reading comprehension, teachers try to address these needs within the regular classroom through different strategies or approaches to instruction.

Tier Two: If a child's needs are not sufficiently met in the regular classroom, we supplement their regular classroom work with two additional resources. First, students may work in small groups with a grade level intervention teacher on the specific skills in which they need extra help or enrichment. Most of the students in Tier Two also participate in after-school tutoring on Wednesday and Thursday afternoons, 3:45 - 4:45 pm. Intersession will also take place twice a year for students who need supplemental instruction. We recommend that students who are not performing at grade level attend Intersession where they will receive small group remedial instruction.

Tier Three: If a child's needs are not sufficiently met with Tier Two supports or he/she is not making sufficient progress, the student may also advance to Tier Three. Students with this level of support work one-on-one or in small groups with our Intervention Specialists - teachers specially trained to meet the needs of students with critical learning challenges. Students and Intervention Specialists meet four times a week and work on the specific skills getting in the way of students' long-term success as readers or math students.

Some students may not be making sufficient progress due to a specific learning disability or behavioral issue. The intervention specialists may recommend (with parents' approval) that the child is tested to determine if she/he has a specific learning disability. With greater knowledge as to the specific disability the student may have, the Intervention Specialist may decide to increase the frequency or intensity of the support they provide, following the recommendations specified in his/her Individualized Educational Plan (IEP)

Special Education Services

According to the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), "special education" refers to specifically designed instruction, at no cost to parents or guardians, to meet the unique needs of students with disabilities.

AMMS provides students with disabilities IEPs designed to meet their individual needs in accordance with all federal and state regulations. Qualifying students may receive services delivered by qualified instructors including but not limited to: speech, occupational therapy, physical therapy, adaptive physical education, assistive technology, audiology, braille instruction, social work and/or counseling, extended school year services, special education instruction, or special transportation.

In order to meet both the administrative and service needs associated with special education, the USI Special Education Director works to meet our high standards of support for scholars as well as the legal and administrative requirements associated with Special Education and serving scholars with limited English proficiency (LEP). Our Director will ensure all services are appropriate, financially feasible, and reported to the state. The principal, assistant principal, and Special Education teachers will work collaboratively to ensure that state and reporting requirements are met. The director will assist with Avondale Meadows Middle School year one and become more active as the special education department grows.

In keeping with our approach and our commitment to families, we also assure that parents of scholars on IEP's as well as those receiving intervention will be fully included in all appropriate school activities and functions. Parents, especially those of children with learning challenges, will be an integral part of the evaluation and program planning of their individual child. It is our goal, that every scholar at *Avondale Meadows Middle School* establishes a vision for his or her future. This goal will remain constant throughout our work with scholars with special needs and their families.

Consistent with Special Education law, every scholar that moves into the school with an IEP from a previous school will have a move in conference within 10 days and parents will participate in the conference to ensure that their child receives appropriate support to meet their needs. In addition, we will conduct a case review with parents at least once yearly to update the scholar's progress and goals. Finally, parents will be encouraged to request a meeting with teachers any time during the year to discuss any concerns they may have.

Staying Up on Your Child's Academic Progress

At AMMS, we employ a number of different tools to continuously monitor the progress of each student and communicate this information to parents, grandparents and guardians.

Midterm Progress Reports

At the midpoint of the grading period, AMMS teachers report on the interim progress of each child through our "Progress Reports." These reports inform parents of their child's academic developments and any potential problems the child may be experiencing.

Parent-Teacher Conferences

Parent-teacher conferences are held twice each year, in the fall and spring. A week before these conferences, teachers will send information home to schedule times with each child's parents. Appointments **must** be set to allow adequate attention and time to meet with each parent. Parents are encouraged to use these times to meet with teachers to discuss their child's progress at school. Conferences with teachers and/or members of the administration can also be arranged as needed throughout the school year. This year, teachers will schedule the majorit y of these conferences on Oct. 8 and Mar. 18; however, teachers will also work with parents to schedule alternative times for a specific child's conference as needed.

Report Cards

Report cards are distributed four times a year, shortly after the end of the grading term – and are distributed by the classroom teacher for quarters 1 - 3. Final report cards are mailed the week following the close of school.

Report cards list a student's proficiency for each of the standards identified for mastery during that term, his/her attendance records, and a discussion of the student's social development and success in working with other students in the classroom.

AMMS Core Values

As a school community, we work with students using a set of core values that complement our school rules and help reinforce the habits and behaviors we are developing in each student. The three core values are *character*, service, and *scholarship*. Listed below is brief description of each core value.

- □ *Character* The ongoing process of personal refinement in an effort to become the best that we can be.
- □ *Service* The art of demonstrating unselfish purpose driven acts for the benefit of building community.
- □ *Scholarship* An intense focus on academic achievement at a very high level.

As part of our interest in developing students' character alongside their academics, AMMS teachers, with consultation from others who work with each child, will evaluate students on the ways in which they are demonstrating these skills and work habits throughout the year.

Classroom Rules and Expectations

As a learning community, AMMS believes deeply in the right of every child to be safe. In order to ensure the safety of each learner and help us all work well together, there is a short but essential list of classroom rules that we expect all students and staff to follow. There are only 5, but all of them are strictly enforced at all times. We are committed to ensuring the safety of our learning environment and will take steps to address violations when and wherever it may occur.

Rule #1: Follow Directions Quickly.
Rule #2: Raise Your Hand for Permission to Speak
Rule #3: Raise Your Hand for Permission to Leave Your Seat
Rule #4: Keep Your Hands, Feet, and All Other Objects to Yourself
Rule #5: Respect your Teachers and Peers

Discipline Policy

Disciplinary offenses result in consequences subject to the discretion of administration and may include detention, loss of school privileges, out of school suspension, Saturday school, and/or recommendation

for expulsion. AMMS' rules and regulations may be supplemented by teachers' rules for their classes and other school events. Suspended students are not entitled to participate in school events. In addition, any breaches of state or federal may be handled in cooperation with the police department or other authorities.

Our approach to discipline is rooted in a belief that the learning environment is sacred. At AMMS we will strive to make sure that every child is safe (physically, emotionally, and intellectually), to learn without needless distractions or disruptions. In order to ensure a healthy learning environment, we have developed age-appropriate consequence systems for helping students learn to behave appropriately at school. All student choices and actions have consequences. Following school rules and focusing on learning have positive consequences.

Consequences

As a staff, the AMMS faculty believes deeply in assigning consequences to instances of misconduct or disruptive behavior. Children generally make mistakes, and we believe that the consequences associated with different behaviors (and the frequency or seriousness with which they occur) is part of the learning process. With this in mind, we briefly outline the potential consequences students might face in the event that they violate one of the rules listed above. We reserve the right to make case-by- case decisions as to the appropriate consequence, given the specifics of the situation and any previous history that might be relevant to each case.

Office Referrals

If a student is repeatedly disruptive or engages in unsafe behavior, teachers will refer the student to the office through an office "discipline referral" form. Upon receiving the referral, one of the building administrators, School Counselor, or City Connects Coordinator will talk with the student, as well as others involved, to investigate the circumstances surrounding the incident. If necessary, the investigating administrator will consult with witnesses and examine any evidence that might facilitate the investigation.

Depending on the circumstances of the referral, a student may be returned to class, remain in the student services classroom for a brief "time out" period, or may receive another consequence. These may include parent phone call or conference, detention, in-school suspension, Saturday School, service project, or out-of-school suspension. Extreme cases may result in an expulsion. Conflict resolution, individual, and/or group counseling may be involved as a component of AMMS' intervention strategies.

In most cases, the staff member investigating the incident will contact the parent or guardian and share with them the specifics of the situation and the further consequences involved. To insure confidentiality, parents will not be given names of any other students involved. Parents, teachers and administrators share the responsibility to teach and model appropriate behavior and/or ways of handling situations that may have led to the referral with the child.

Detention

Teachers as well as administrators may assign a detention based on the seriousness of the students' offense or continuous disruption of the learning environment. Students may be detained during lunch, recess, before or after school. Lunch/recess detention means that a student will miss lunch and recess time with the class, and will spend that time in detention eating his/her lunch alone and doing schoolwork. Parents will be notified when a child is assigned a before or after-school detention to ensure transportation is arranged. After school detentions will be held on Tuesdays and Thursdays.

If a student fails to attend two detentions, he/she will be referred to the Dean for consideration of additional consequences.

Friday/Saturday School

Friday and/or Saturday School will allow students to remediate unsatisfactory behavior due to attendance, tardy and behavior issues. Along with the regular, weekday detention sessions, this provides an additional opportunity for students to resolve disciplinary concerns. Students must be on time and report in full uniform. Breakfast and lunch are not served. Parents will be notified when Saturday school has been assigned to their child. Failure to attend Saturday school will result in an Out of School Suspension.

In extreme instances, students may be at risk of expulsion. For a thorough list of the behaviors that might lead to an expulsion as well as the process and procedures associated with this event, please consult **Appendix B**.

In the end, AMMS expects all students to conduct themselves in a civil and socially responsible manner. The disciplinary measures listed above will be carried out in accordance with state law and are essential to maintaining a safe and stable school environment in which students are able to do their best work.

Suspension

Suspensions may be in-school or out of school as specified via phone conversation and/or included in the suspension letter provided to parents. Parents may be required to return to school with their child to meet with the principal or assistant principal as specified in the suspension letter. They may be as short as a couple hours or as long as 7 to 10 days – again, as noted in the suspension letter.

In nearly every instance, we suspend students when the following incidents occur:

- \Box Involved in a fight
- □ Repeated disruption in the classroom/Habitual misbehaving
- □ Willfully defying the direction of a staff member
- Threaten or cause physical harm to another
- □ Seriously stealing or damage to school or private property
- □ Bring something to school that is dangerous
- \Box Commit an obscene act
- □ Bullying or harassing another student
- \Box Leave the assigned area without permission
- □ Misuse of technology (including recording on personal devices)
- □ Violation of the Computer/Internet Policy

Expulsion Procedures

The following behaviors may result in a student being expelled for a period of time as allowed by Indiana law:

- □ Causing serious injury to another person
- □ Habitual misbehavior
- □ Fighting
 - Possession, use of, sale of, or furnishing any firearm, knife, explosive or other dangerous object
- Unlawful possession of, use or sale of any controlled substance
- □ Robbery or extortion
- Offering, furnishing, or sale of any drug paraphernalia
- □ Criminal behavior
- □ Threats of a terrorist nature, hate violence, or hate crimes
- □ Sexual assault
- □ Battery
- □ Misuse of Technology

Processes for appealing expulsion are available in the school office, and are outlined in Indiana Code, IC 20-8.1-5.1, Chapter 5.1, Suspension, Expulsion and Student Discipline.

Notification of an expulsion hearing before the administration will be sent in accordance with IC 20-8.1-5.1-13. Formal findings from such a hearing will be explained in writing to the parents and the Principal of AMMS with stipulations outlining the length of the expulsion.

Any student who has been expelled pursuant to these provisions shall have the right to appeal to the Board of Trustees as specified in IC 20-8.1-5.1-13. When a student is expelled under the provisions of this section and applies for admission to another school for acceptance, AMMS shall notify the receiving school of the expulsion.

Procedures for all Expulsion Hearings

- 1. A presentation of the evidence against the student is stated by the Hearing Officer
- 2. (Principal or Administrative designee) at the school.
- 3. A presentation by the student and parent or parent's designee (individual) of any defense or mitigating circumstances.
- 4. Submission of written statements from any person in defense of the student accepted by the Hearing Officer. The student may present witnesses and evidence in rebuttal of the school's allegation to the Hearing Officer.
- 5. The Hearing Officer records a summary of the facts and disputed evidence.
- 6. Failure of the pupil and/or parent to appear at the hearing without good cause constitutes a waiver of the hearing and the case is reviewed by the Hearing Officer (Principal or designee). A decision is rendered on the evidence available.
- 7. On the day of the hearing, a presentation detailing the reasons for the decision is given to the student and parent or guardian. Formal findings from the hearing officer will be mailed within

10 days of the hearing. The decision may authorize return to school at an earlier date, and may include an alternative educational plan or an evaluation request under Chapter 766.

Cell Phone and Electronic Device Policy

Electronic devices, cell phones and ear pods included, are not allowed to be on or carried by the student during the school day. If a teacher or staff member sees or hears a prohibited or unapproved electronic device, they will send the student to administration where it will be confiscated. A parent or guardian must come to school to pick up the item. Repeated instances of violating the school's cell phone policy will result in a school-specific progressive system of consequences. The school and its staff members are not responsible for lost or stolen property of any kind, including prohibited items that may have been confiscated.

Dress Code

AMMS students are young professionals who are learning the habits of adult professionals, including the habits of professional dress. Full school uniforms must be worn at all times (including appropriate and approved belts and shoes). They are meant to stress the fundamental equality of all students and to remove the distractions created by the status consciousness associated with clothing and sneaker fashion. These distractions, in many schools, lead to unwholesome competition and even violence. The school is a place for serious work and learning. Below is a flowchart of consequences for students out of uniform:

	1st	Letter Sent Home	Student will be given a loaner uniform uniform		
Offer	ise				
	2^{nd}	Letter Sent Home	Phone call		
Offer	ise				
	3 rd	Letter sent home	Phone call		
Offer	ise				
	4 th	Letter sent home	Phone call	Detention	
Offer	ise				
	5 th	Letter sent home	Phone call	½ day ISS	
Offer		Letter sent home	Phone call	1 day ISS	
	6 th				
Offer					
	$7^{\rm th}$	Letter sent home	Phone call	1 day ISS	Saturday School
Offer	nse				
	8^{th}	Letter sent home	Phone call	1 day OSS	Saturday School
Offer	nse				

Parents will be informed if their child is out of uniform, and will be asked to bring the proper uniform to school immediately. If this is not possible, the school will follow the consequences listed above.

Our standard dress for young men consists of:

- □ Khaki or Navy Cotton Twill Slacks (belted and worn at waist)
- □ White or Navy short-sleeved Oxford Shirt (white tee-shirt may be worn underneath) or a

- □ White or Navy Polo Shirt
- □ Navy or Burgundy sweater or sweater vest (optional)
- $\Box \qquad \text{Brown or Black belt}$
- \Box Tie (optional)

- Sneakers, Dress/Sunday shoes, or black books (no slides or Crocs are allowed)
- □ Long sleeve shirts may be worn underneath Polos in winter months, but must be solid navy or white

Our standard dress for young ladies consists of:

- □ Solid Navy or Solid Khaki Jumper or Skirt
- □ Khaki or Navy Cotton Twill Slacks
- □ Navy or Burgundy sweater or sweater vest (optional)
- □ White Blouse or White or Navy Polo Shirt
- □ Crossbow Tie (optional)
- □ Sneakers, dress shoes,(no slides or Crocs are allowed)
- □ Tights
- □ Black boots may only be worn during winter
- □ Long sleeve shirts may be worn underneath Polos in winter months, but must be solid navy or white

AMMS will have Spirit Wear shirts for students to wear as a part of their uniform. The shirts are in addition to the uniform but not required. All Spirit Wear must be worn over a collared uniform shirt, unless on School Spirit Days.

<u>NOTE:</u> Shorts and Capri pants are not part of the school uniform and may not be worn to school.

Students will not be permitted to wear the following items during the school day:

- □ Coats, jackets, or sweatshirts inside of the building
- Tennis shoes, sneakers, athletic shoes or sandals (unless specified for a special activity)
- Clothing bearing any logos, messages, or other insignia other than AMMS logo
- □ Shorts, Capri pants, or any other non-standard length trousers
- Trousers that are oversized, low-rise, baggy, or inappropriately altered
- $\hfill\square$ Hats, buttons, gloves, bandanas, scarves, excessive jewelry, visible body piercing (other than small earrings)
- □ Visible body art

Jewelry, Body Piercing, Tattoos:

Small earrings are permitted, however, no other body piercing is permitted. Tattoos are prohibited. Any tattoos/body art, temporary or permanent, must be removed before the student is permitted to attend class. Jewelry should not interfere with the educational environment of the school.

Fridays/AMMS Spirit Days:

On Fridays, students are permitted to wear AMMS spirit wear with *blue jeans* and gym shoes.

The following clothing is not permitted on Fridays:

- □ Shorts
- □ Sweatpants
- \Box Jeans with holes or tears
- □ Leggings/Yoga Pants
- □ Colored jeans (red, black, brown, pink etc)
- □ Slides, Crocs, other open toed shoes

*If a student does not wear an AMMS spirit shirt on Friday, they should come to school in full uniform.

Parent Involvement Outreach and Communication

AMMS encourages an atmosphere in which parents, administration and faculty join in a partnership to support the development of each student and the overall mission of our school. Our partnership works best within an environment for collaboration and a frequent exchange of important information.

Parent House Alliance

AMMS believes that the success of students greatly increases when parents are involved in the school community. Therefore, our Parent Alliance (which replaces our PTO, Parent-Teacher Organization) will be three parents/guardians from each House (Amani, Ubuntu, Utanga, Toka) who meet once a month in a group agreed upon day and time to discuss and assist in planning parent involvement in culture activities and events.

2023-2024 is the inaugural year of the Parent Alliance, the specifics of this group will be fluid and defined during the first two meetings. The Parent Alliance will be led by two designated AMMS staff members who are initially responsible for establishing meeting dates, agendas, and all communication.

Overall Outreach and Communication

Strong communication is essential to the partnership between parents and teachers at AMMS. We take a number of steps to encourage and facilitate strong communication and partnership between parents and teachers and the school as a whole.

Phone and Email Communication

- 1. Parents will receive the voicemail number and email address of their child's teacher in the welcome letter sent to families at the start of school year.
- 2. In the instance where a child needs to contact a teacher for assistance outside of school hours, we ask that the parent initiates the communication.
- 3. Parents may initiate conversation with their child's teacher at any point in the school year.
- 4. School-wide concerns can be taken directly to the school administration via email, phone or a scheduled meeting.

Please note: We do not allow students to carry or use cellular devices during the school day. Parents who need to deliver a message to their child need to call our office. We will either relay the message to

the student or ask the student to come to the office to talk with the parent directly. Students who ask and receive permission may use the school office telephone. If a child needs to have a cell phone with them for use after school, it should remain off and in the child's backpack. Any cell phone that is out of the backpack or on during the school day, will be confiscated.

AMMS Monthly Newsletter

We send home an AMMS Newsletter each month throughout the school year. The newsletter serves to update the entire school community as to important events, reminders and concerns essential to the life of our school. We also post the latest newsletter on our website and keep extra copies in the Parent Corner and school office. Please read the monthly newsletter to stay up to date on the activities of AMMS and its upcoming programs/events.

Back to School Night

Each year, AMMS will host a Back-to-School Night, an opportunity for parents to meet their child's teacher and find out exactly what is expected of the child as well as the parent in order to have a successful school year. This year, the Back-To-School Family BBQ night will be *July 27th*. At that time, parents can expect to receive an overview of the year's curriculum (what exactly your child will be working on) as well as each teacher's plan for keeping you abreast of your child's progress throughout the year. He or she will also provide contact information to facilitate communication across the school year. Parents who are unable to attend Back to School Night can meet one on one with their child's teacher to receive the information.

House Family Night (formally Parent University)

Parents will have the opportunity to participate in workshops on how to help their child grow as a reader, writer, STEM, and future college & career pathways. House Family Night will take place on November 9th, 2023 and March 8th, 2024.

Concerns & Complaints

Parents, grandparents and/or guardians who have a complaint about their child's education experience or concerns that the needs of their child are not being met should schedule an appointment with their child's teacher by phone or email. If the issue is not resolved, the parent should follow up with the school administration by phone or email. If the issue is not resolved after meeting with administration, parents may submit a letter of concern to the Executive Director.

Visitors and Volunteers

As a school community, AMMS treasures the relationships we have with our families, we encourage and insist parents, grandparents and guardians visit classrooms (including their child's classroom) so that they might better know and understand our school program and the success of their child. Families who are interested in visiting a classroom must schedule an appointment through the school office prior to visiting.

We are equally interested in parents, grandparents, guardians and community members volunteering their time, expertise and attention in our school. Volunteers can work in our office, helping with paperwork critical to the operations of our school, they may volunteer in classrooms, reading with specific students; or they can volunteer for the many different events we have engaging families in the life of our school. All are important and a powerful resource in our efforts to educate children. In order to ensure that parent visits and volunteer opportunities go smoothly, we do have expectations (also included in the *AMMS Visitor/Volunteer Contract, Appendix D*).

- Sign in and out in the main office
- Model, support and affirm the principles that the school instills, such as
 - AMMS' Core Values
 - Eagle Code of Conduct
 - Walk quietly on the right side of the hallway
- Redirect only your child
- Communicate with all children in a manner that is positive and encouraging
- Turn off/Mute all cell phones and other electronic devices
- Refrain from taking videos or photos
- Maintain professional in my appearance and communication with staff and students
- Allow the school staff to continue with their work and schedule a meeting if there is something I would like to discuss
- Make clearly visible my volunteer nametag/badge
- Notify school staff immediately if a child reports thoughts of suicide and/or abuse
- Get the assistance of a school staff member if there is a situation that requires physical intervention
- Adhere to the smoke/drug free environment

Finally, we welcome and encourage parents, grandparents and community members who wish to volunteer in our building and help our students grow. Volunteers may take on a variety of responsibilities as arranged through the Community School Coordinator. All volunteers must have signed the "AMMS Visitor/Volunteer Contract", Appendix D, and have a limited criminal history check on file with the office. Volunteers must also be approved by school administration to be in the building as a volunteer.

Lost and Found

We strongly encourage parents to clearly mark all of their child's belongings with his/her first and last name. We do, however, maintain a Lost and Found Box in the parent corner in the event that students lose an item in school. Any student who has lost an item should check lost and found in the parent corner. Please note: we empty the Lost-and-Found at the end of each quarter and donate useful items either to the AMMS uniform closet or a local shelter.

Emergency Procedures

As a faculty, we review our school wide crisis management plan annually. We implement these procedures in the event of any unforeseen instance in which the safety of any member of our community might be at risk.

Accidents

All children experience minor scrapes and bruises from time to time. The school nurse maintains a log of all children seen on a daily basis. Our nurse completes an Accident Report Form for more serious events. In such an event, the nurse and/or staff member may follow some or all of the procedures below:

- 1. The school nurse or a staff member carries out immediate first aid.
- 2. The school nurse or a staff member contacts the parents to pick up the student for medical care.
- 3. In cases where the parents or the designated emergency persons cannot be reached, or where immediate medical attention is needed, the school calls a local emergency unit for treatment and/or transportation to a hospital. A staff member accompanies the student and stays until the parent arrives.
- 4. In cases of an extreme emergency, the nurse or administrator may contact the local emergency unit before calling the parent.

Child Abuse/Neglect Protocol

Indiana law requires immediate reporting of suspected child abuse or neglect to the authorities and to the appropriate individual in charge of the school. Failure to do so is a violation of the law.

Emergency Drills

Each year the school conducts different types of drills to make sure students know what to do in case of an emergency while they are in school. We conduct the following drills:

- □ **Fire Drills** are conducted regularly as required by the Indianapolis Fire Department. Fire exit routes and procedures are posted in every classroom.
- □ **Inclement Weather Drills** are conducted each semester. Procedures are reviewed by teachers, and practiced by children. Exit directions and procedures are posted in all rooms.
- □ **Lockout Drills** are utilized when there is a safety concern OUTSIDE the building. During this time, no one is permitted to enter or exit the building. Normal activities continue inside.
- □ **Lockdown Drills** are conducted for if there is a safety concern INSIDE the building. Classrooms are secured and the class moves into a more protected area of the classroom.
- □ **Emergency Evacuation:** Students would be evacuated to a predetermined location and parents will be contacted.

As always, student safety is our top priority. During an emergency our attention is focused on following our procedures and keeping everyone safe. Once everyone is safe and secure, parents will be notified via a School Messenger call. Please make sure your phone number and email address is updated at all times. Additionally, it is important that the school phone lines are kept open during an emergency so we can be notified of updates from emergency personnel.

Video Surveillance

Video surveillance is used to maintain safety and security of our staff and students. The surveillance video is general surveillance and is not specific to any student or person. Surveillance videos are only kept for a short time and we record over the videos daily. We do not maintain videos that have been recorded over. It is our policy that we do not share video surveillance with parents, family or community members.

School Closings or Delays

If school is closed or the opening is delayed due to inclement weather, power outage or other problem, the school principal or assistant principal will send out a phone message to all families as well as post this information on local radio and television stations -WISH - TV (channel 8), WTHR (channel 13) and WRTV (channel 6). If a delay is called for, AMA follows a 2-hr delay schedule and the school day begins @ 10:00 am.Only under extreme circumstances does a school closing occur once students have arrived. If an early closing should occur, parents will be notified via phone message. Parents/guardians will need to pick up their children by the time of closing.

Health Policies and Procedures

The nurse's office works very hard to maintain the health of all the students. It is our goal to make sure all students have a safe and healthy place to learn. The following policies and procedures regarding the health of our students were created to ensure the safety, health and the total welfare of all the students at Avondale Meadows Academy.

Administration of Medication

Giving medication during school hours is discouraged and restricted to necessary medication that cannot be given at home; yet, some specific situations require it. In the instance that medication has to be given at school, parents/guardians MUST bring the medication to the school office before school, where it will be delivered to the nurse and stored in a secured (or locked) cabinet or refrigerator.

If your child needs to take a prescription medication at school, please ask your pharmacy to provide a duplicate bottle for school usage. Any changes from your child's original prescription must be verified by the doctor, either by a fax or a new script. If your child has a medical condition which requires medication to be given on an as-needed basis, a doctor's note is requested with instructions for administration of medication and reason for the medication.

All medications brought to school MUST be in the prescription bottle or original container. Medicine will not be given unless it is prescribed for the child bringing it to school and the container has his/her name on it. All medications must be accompanied by a medication slip, including:

- 1. Student's Name
- 2. Medication Name
- 3. Directions (amount and time to be given)
- 4. Number of days to be given
- 5. Parent's signature, telephone number and date

Any medication, not in the original container, and with the child's name on it, will be held by the school nurse for a parent to pick up within one week. After that, it will be destroyed. Medications, whether prescription or over-the-counter, may not be given without written consent from parents or guardians. Parents are required to pick up any remaining medication by June 5 or it will be destroyed.

<u>Communicable Disease</u>s

Parents must notify the school immediately if a student has contracted a communicable disease. The school will then notify parents of other students in the classroom and, possibly, grade level. If more than one case of a communicable disease occurs in a single homeroom or area of the school, the school may contact a Public Health Officer. In the event of an epidemic, special precautions or exclusion policies will be initiated. AMMS follows isolation and quarantine regulations as prescribed by the Indiana Department of Public Health.

Doctor/Dentist Appointments

All appointments are strongly urged to be scheduled outside school hours. If this is not possible, a parent or a designated guardian must come to the school office to pick up a student for a medical or dental appointment. In order for an appointment to be excused, a note from the doctor or dentist's office must be turned into the school office.

Health Requisites

AMMS employs a full-time counselor and part-time school nurse. We follow state law concerning proper immunization, and we require that immunization records be on file before a student is allowed to attend school. All students must present, before admission, a physician's certificate listing the required immunizations as outlined by the State Board of Health. Parents are required to maintain a current record of immunizations for their child(ren).

Illness and Exclusion Policy

If a student shows any symptoms of illness, such as a temperature, nausea, diarrhea, sore throat, or a rash, he/she should not come to school until a diagnosis has been determined or the symptoms have disappeared.

If a student shows symptoms of a serious illness while at school, the student is excluded from the regular school program, and the following procedures are followed:

- 1. The student is asked to report to the nurse's office.
- 2. Parents are notified to make arrangements to have the student picked up at school.
- 3. If parents cannot be reached, the person designated on the emergency card is called. *It is essential that parents list people on the emergency card who are able to pick up the student if the parents cannot be reached.*

Items of Interest or Concern

- □ A limited amount of clothing is available in the nurse's office for the children when accidents occur. If your child needs to use these items, they need to be laundered and promptly returned to the nurse's office.
- □ If your child becomes ill or injured, it is imperative that the nurse's office has three (3) working contact numbers on file. The nurse's office must be able to reach parents, guardians, or someone who will be responsible for the child and pick them up in a timely manner.
- □ AMMS has a "no nit policy." Any student diagnosed with lice must be nit free before returning to school. Information on lice control is available in the nurse's office.
- DO NOT send your child to school if they had a fever above 100 degrees or more within the last 24 hours. If they complain of feeling ill, please check their temperature before sending them to school.
- □ DO NOT send your child to school if they have had diarrhea or vomiting in the last 24 hours.
- □ If your child has any type of infection, they must have been on an antibiotic for 24 hours before returning to school.

Screening Tests

AMMS works with the State and local health agencies to conduct age appropriate health screenings. These tests are carried out under the supervision of our school nurse. Health screening procedures can only identify potential or existing health problems. School officials will notify parents/guardians of the results of the screening to allow the necessary follow up with medical personnel.

Admissions to AMMS

Enrollment Process

Avondale Meadows Middle School is a partner with Enroll Indy, a city-wide unified enrollment system. In order to enroll at a UNITED SCHOOLS OF INDIANAPOLIS partner school, families will need to fill out a One Match Application (<u>www.enrollindy.org/apply</u>). When completing the application, you will need to rank the specific school as #1 on the application in order to have the best chance of being matched with us. If you have questions about how to fill out the application, contact the school office. Instructions for applying are also listed below.

Enrolling @ Avondale Meadows Middle School

Families who are interested in enrolling with Avondale Meadows Middle School should complete the following steps:

- 1. Complete an application by visiting <u>www.enrollindy.org/apply.</u>
 - a. Create a family profile
 - b. Complete an application
 - c. Rank specific school of choice as #1 choice.
- 2. Enroll Indy notifies you of a school match (date of school match notification is detailed below).
- 3. If matched with your school of choice, you will receive welcome letter from the school detailing next steps for enrolling your scholar.
- 4. Attend a New Family Orientation (dates will be included in welcome letter) and complete registration documents.

Enrollment Frequently Asked Questions

What is OneMatch?

OneMatch is a unified enrollment system that streamlines the application process for Indianapolis students and their families. Families who would like to apply to a new school for the 2018-2019 school year can now use the OneMatch system to fill out one application with one timeline and receive one match for their students. Families use a single application to apply to up to 10 schools, instead of filling out different applications for every school they're interested in.

Why is the school part of the OneMatch system?

We believe in following an enrollment process that is equitable for all families. By partnering with Enroll Indy and using the OneMatch system, the enrollment process will be more accessible.

When will applications be accepted?

Families will apply online at <u>www.enrollindy.org/apply.</u> The link is also provided on our website or you may go directly to the Enroll Indy website. No paper applications will be available, but families who do not have access to a computer or a mobile device may come to the school office and use the application computers during from 9am-3pm Monday-Friday. To apply outside of these hours, please call the school office to make an appointment.

How will the application process work?

When filling out the application, a family will create a profile which will show a student's neighborhood or boundary school and any other schools to which you can apply. Township schools and private schools will continue to have separate applications, but all IPS and most charter schools will use the OneMatch application. Families may list up to ten schools they are willing to attend, although families may only list one or two if that is their preference.

What happens if I do not match to my choice?

If you do not match to one of your choices, you will default to your neighborhood or boundary school. If you are unsatisfied with that match, you may reapply during the second or third round, provided there are spaces still available.

What steps will I need to take to secure my spot?

A timeline for securing your spot and submitting your paperwork will be detailed when you receive your match.

Appendix A: The AMMS Anti-Bullying Policy

At Avondale Meadows Middle School, we expect every student to follow the Eagle Code of Conduct and be kind, respectful, prepared, responsible, and engaged each day. AMMS prioritizes the safety of every student and prohibits bullying of any kind. We define *bullying* (as the Indiana Department of Education's does) as the following:

IC 20-33-8-0.2

"Bullying"

Sec. 0.2. "bullying" means overt, repeated acts or gestures, including:

(1) verbal or written communications transmitted;

(2) physical acts committed; or

(3) any other behaviors committed; by a student or group of students against another student with the intent to harass, ridicule, humiliate, intimidate, or harm the other student.

How does AMMS create a safe environment that prohibits bullying?

- Core Values
- Eagle Code of Conduct
- House Challenges
- Advisory
- Community Service Projects
- Guest Speakers

What to do when bullying is suspected?

1. Students who are being bullied or who have witnessed bullying:

The student should report the incident to a teacher immediately. The teacher will refer the incident to administration who will investigate the incident. Administration will meet with the alleged aggressor, the victim, and bystanders. Consequences will be given to any students found to be in violation of bullying or bystanders. Parents of both the alleged aggressor and victim will be notified.

- a. If bullying continues after investigation and consequences, the aggressor may be referred to counseling services, or receive additional consequences, increasing in severity. The victim will attend a meeting where a plan is developed to ensure safety in the school.
- b. This rule applies when a student is:
 - i. On school grounds immediately before or during school hours, immediately after school hours, or at any other time when the school is being used by a school group;
 - ii. Off school grounds at a school activity, function, or event;
 - iii. Traveling to or from a school activity, function or event; or

1

iv. Using property or equipment (i.e. computers) provided by the school.

Parents who suspect bullying should follow the same procedure as students, which is to report the suspected incident(s) to the student's teacher immediately.

Appendix B: Student Discipline Policies

Avondale Meadows Middle School student discipline policies and guidelines are executed in accordance with Indiana Code, IC 20-8.1-5.1.

Search and Seizure Policy

- 1. The School Board recognizes that the privacy of students and their belongings may not be violated by unreasonable search and seizure and directs that no student be searched without reasonable cause for a search.
 - a) As used in this policy, "reasonable cause for a search" means any circumstances, which would cause a reasonable person to believe that the search of a particular person, place, or thing will lead to the discovery of:
 - i. Evidence of a violation of the student conduct standards contained in the student handbook; or
 - ii. Anything, which, because of its presence, presents an immediate danger of physical harm or illness to any person.
- 2. All lockers and other storage areas provided for student use on school premises remain the property of the school corporation and are provided for the use of the students subject to inspection, access for maintenance, and search pursuant to this policy. A student who uses a locker that is the property of a school is presumed to have no expectation of privacy in that locker or the locker's contents. No student shall lock or otherwise impede access to any locker or storage area except with a lock provided by or approved by the principal of the school in which the locker or storage area is located. Unapproved locks shall be removed and destroyed.
- 3. The principal or a member of administrative staff may search a locker and its contents where either the person conducting the search or the person designating the search believes there is reasonable cause.
- 4. The principal, a member of the administrative staff, or a teacher may search a desk or any other storage area on school premises other than a locker when the person conducting the search has reasonable cause for a search.

- 5. The principal, or another member of the administrative staff may search the person of a student during a school activity if the principal has reasonable grounds for a search of that student.
 - a) Searches of the person of a student shall be limited to:
 - i. Searches of the pockets of the student,
 - ii. Any object in the possession of the student such as a purse or briefcase, and/or
 - iii. A "pat down" of the exterior of the student's clothing.
- 6. Searches of the person of a student that require removal of clothing other than a coat or jacket shall be referred to a law enforcement officer in accordance with this policy. A person of the same sex as the student being searched shall conduct searches of the person of a student in a private room. At least one, but not more than three, additional persons of the same sex as the student being searched shall witness, but not participate, in the search. At the request of the student to be searched, an additional person of the same sex as the student designated by the student, and then reasonably available on school premises shall witness the search. The parent or guardian of any student searched shall be notified of the search as soon as reasonably possible.
- 7. Anything found in the course of a search conducted in accordance with this policy which is evidence of a violation of the student conduct standards contained in the student handbook may, as deemed appropriate by school authorities, be:
 - a) Seized and admitted as evidence in any suspension or expulsion proceeding if it is tagged for identification at the time it is seized and kept in a secure place by the principal or the principal's designee until it is presented at the hearing,
 - b) Returned to the parent or guardian of the student from whom it was seized, c. Destroyed if it has no significant value, or
 - c) Turned over to any law enforcement officer in accordance with this policy.
- 8. Anything found in the course of a search conducted in accordance with this policy which by its presence presents an immediate danger of physical harm or illness to any person may be seized and, as considered appropriate by school authorities, may be:
 - a) Returned to the parent or guardian of the student from whom it was seized,
 - b) Destroyed, or
 - c) Turned over to any law enforcement officer in accordance with this policy.
- 9. The principal or a member of the administrative staff may request the assistance of a law enforcement officer to:
 - a) Search any area of school premises, any student, or any motor vehicle on school premises;

b) Identify or dispose of anything found in the course of a search conducted in accordance with this policy.

Where law enforcement officers respond to such a request, no school employee shall assist or otherwise participate in any search conducted.

Expulsion Procedures

The following behaviors may result in a student being expelled for a period of time as allowed by Indiana law:

- Causing serious injury to another person
- Habitual misbehavior
- Possession, use of, sale of, or furnishing any firearm, knife, explosive or other dangerous object
- Unlawful possession of, use or sale of any controlled substance
- Robbery or extortion
- · Offering, furnishing, or sale of any drug paraphernalia
- Criminal behavior
- Threats of a terrorist nature, hate violence, or hate crimes
- Sexual assault
- Battery

Forms and processes for appealing expulsion are available in the school office, and are outlined in Indiana Code, IC 20-8.1-5.1, Chapter 5.1, Suspension, Expulsion and Student Discipline.

Notification of an expulsion hearing before the administration will be sent in accordance with IC 20-8.1-5.1-13. Formal findings from such a hearing will be explained in writing to the parents and the Principal of AMMS with stipulations outlining the length of the expulsion.

Any student who has been expelled pursuant to these provisions shall have the right to appeal to the Board of Trustees as specified in IC 20-8.1-5.1-13. When a student is expelled under the provisions of this section and applies for admission to another school for acceptance, the Head of School of AMMS shall notify the head of the receiving school of the reasons for the pupil's expulsion.

Procedures for all Expulsion Hearings

- A presentation of the evidence against the student is stated by the Hearing Officer (Principal or Administrative designee) at the school.
- A presentation by the student and parent or parent's designee (individual) of any defense or mitigating circumstances.

- Submission of written statements from any person in defense of the student accepted by the Hearing Officer. The student may present witnesses and evidence in rebuttal of the school's allegation to the Hearing Officer.
- The Hearing Officer records a summary of the facts and disputed evidence.
- Failure of the pupil and/or parent to appear at the hearing without good cause constitutes a waiver of the hearing and the case is reviewed by the Hearing Officer (Principal or designee). A decision is rendered on the evidence available.
- On the day of the hearing, a presentation detailing the reasons for the decision is given to the student and parent or guardian. Formal findings from the hearing officer will be mailed within 10 days of the hearing. The decision may authorize return to school at an earlier date, and may include an alternative educational plan or an evaluation request under Chapter 766.

Appendix C: Computer/Internet Policy

Use of AMMS' computer network is a privilege, not a right. Students may use the computers as long as they observe the rules as outlined below. Failure to follow these rules may result in loss of computer network privileges, detention, or suspension.

- 1. The network is to be used only for activities that support education and research related to assigned schoolwork.
- 2. When communicating with others on the Internet, students must be polite and appropriate at all times.
- 3. The network is not to be used for any illegal purpose. Illegal activities include tampering with the computer hardware or software, unauthorized entry into computers, or knowledgeable vandalism or destruction of computer files. Such activity is considered a crime under state and federal law.
- 4. Copyrighted material is not to be copied without permission. Copyright laws and rules regarding software, information, and attribution of authorship are to be respected. No software other than what is provided by the school may be installed.
- 5. Any use of the network, which involves obscenity, profanity, racism, sexism, personal attacks, harassment, or offensive messages or pictures is prohibited.
- 6. Passwords and/or accounts are not to be shared. Violations of the policy that can be traced to an individual account will be treated as the sole responsibility of the owner of the account.
- 7. It is against policy to attempt to use the accounts and passwords of others, using pseudonyms, anonymity or attempting to access information of others.
- 8. It is against policy to knowingly degrade the performance of the network. Electronic chain letters and "mail-bombs" are prohibited.
- 9. Students who have knowledge of violations of these policies must report the information immediately to the teacher, principal, or system operator.

Appendix D: Volunteer Opportunities at Avondale Meadows Middle School

Speaker's Bureau

There will be several occasions when we will need parents to speak on behalf of AMMS during school functions and community events. We are looking for parents who are excited about sharing their AMMS experiences with the broader community.

Classroom Assistants

Students in every classroom in our building can benefit from some assistance and a little extra attention from someone interested in their progress. Help could include grading papers, assisting with classroom events or lessons, making copies or simply helping with a reading group.

Teacher Copies:

In times of emergency or last minute adjustments, teachers are rushed to make last minute copies of the materials they need for class that day. Interestingly, we are looking for parents and volunteers to be a resource for teachers to make copies in times of need. We'll supply the copy paper, the copier and even coffee. All we need is a devoted crew of parents or volunteers to come in whenever they wish to assist us. Please check below if you are interested in being a resource for our teachers.

AND MANY OTHER OPPORTUNITIES!!!

Please contact the front office with questions and/or concerns at (317) 550-3363.

Select all volunteer opportunities that you wish to be contacted about:

- O Speaker's Bureau
- O Classroom Assistant
- O Teacher Copies

Name		
Phone Number		
Email Address		
Child's Name		



Avondale Meadows Middle School Visitor/Volunteer Contract

As a visitor and/or volunteer, I agree to adhere to this agreement at all times. I agree to:

- Sign in and out in the main office
- Model, support and affirm the principles that the school instills, such as
 - o AMMS' Core Values
 - Eagle Code of Conduct
 - Walk quietly on the right side of the hallway
- Redirect only your child
- Communicate with all children in a manner that is positive and encouraging
- Turn off/Mute all cell phones and other electronic devices
- Refrain from taking videos or photos
- Maintain professional in my appearance and communication with staff and students
- Allow the school staff to continue with their work and schedule a meeting if there is something I would like to discuss
- Make clearly visible my volunteer nametag/badge
- Notify school staff immediately if a child reports thoughts of suicide and/or abuse
- Get the assistance of a school staff member if there is a situation that requires physical intervention
- Adhere to the smoke/drug free environment

I understand that if I fail to meet the expectations outlined above, the school has the right to restrict my access during future visit and/or volunteer opportunities.

Name:
Signature:
Date:
Emergency Contact:
Emergency Contact Number:

Appendix E: Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) (20 U.S.C. § 1232g; 34 CFR Part 99) is a Federal law that protects the privacy of student education records. The law applies to all schools that receive funds under an applicable program of the U.S. Department of Education.

FERPA gives parents certain rights with respect to their children's education records. These rights transfer to the student when he or she reaches the age of 18 or attends a school beyond the high school level. Students to whom the rights have transferred are "eligible students."

- Parents have the right to inspect and review the student's education records maintained by the school. Schools are not required to provide copies of records unless, for reasons such as great distance, it is impossible for parents or eligible students to review the records. Schools may charge a fee for copies.
- Parents or eligible students have the right to request that a school correct records which they believe to be inaccurate or misleading. If the school decides not to amend the record, the parent or eligible student then has the right to a formal hearing. After the hearing, if the school still decides not to amend the record, the parent or eligible student has the right to place a statement with the record setting forth his or her view about the contested information.
- Generally, schools must have written permission from the parent in order to release any information from a student's education record. However, FERPA allows schools to disclose those records, without consent, to the following parties or under the following conditions (34 CFR § 99.31):
 - School officials with legitimate educational interest;
 - Other schools to which a student is transferring;
 - Specified officials for audit or evaluation purposes;
 - Appropriate parties in connection with financial aid to a student;
 - Organizations conducting certain studies for or on behalf of the school;
 - Accrediting organizations;
 - To comply with a judicial order or lawfully issued subpoena;
 - Appropriate officials in cases of health and safety emergencies; and
 - State and local authorities, within a juvenile justice system, pursuant to specific State law.

Schools may disclose, without consent, "directory" information such as a student's name, address, telephone number, date and place of birth, honors and awards, and dates of attendance. However, schools must tell parents and eligible students about directory information and allow parents and eligible students a reasonable amount of time to request that the school not disclose directory information about them. Schools must notify parents and eligible students annually of their rights under FERPA. The actual means of notification (special letter, inclusion in a PTA bulletin, student handbook, or newspaper article) is left to the discretion of each school. AMMS informs parents of their FERPA rights through the AMMS Family Handbook.

Appendix F: Title I Documents

Title I: Parent's Right to Know

July 6, 2021

Dear Parents and Guardians:

In accordance with the Elementary and Secondary Education Act, Section 1111(h)(6) *PARENTS' RIGHT TO KNOW*, this is a notification from Avondale Meadows Middle School to every parent of a student in a Title I school that you have the right to request and receive information in a timely manner regarding the professional qualifications of your student's classroom teachers. This information regarding the professional qualifications of your student's classroom teachers shall include the following:

- If the teacher has met state qualification and licensing criteria for the grade level and subject areas taught;
- If the teacher is teaching under emergency or temporary status in which Indiana qualifications and licensing criteria are waived;
- The teacher's baccalaureate degree major, graduate certification, and field of discipline; and
- Whether the student is provided services by paraprofessionals, and if so, their qualifications

If at any time your student has been taught for 4 or more consecutive weeks by a teacher that is not highly qualified, you will be notified by the school of this information. If you have questions or concerns, please feel free to contact Chrystal Westerhaus at (317) 550-3363 or via email @ cwesterhaus@avondalemeadowsms.org

Sincerely,

Dr. Mark A Simon AMMS Principal

Title 1 School - Parent Contract

The mission of Avondale Meadows Middle School is to provide a rigorous and relevant collegepreparatory program, grounded in our belief that every child can succeed at high levels. With an understanding of the strengths each student has, we reinforce that every individual has a part in our family's success. United, our students will consistently meet and exceed academic standards.

In order for this mission to be lived every day at Avondale Meadows Middle School the following are agreed upon roles and responsibilities that each stakeholder will carry out to support student success in school and in life.

Staff will:

- Create a safe, welcoming and supportive classroom for each learner.
- Teach, practice and model the behaviors for learning.
- Build strong relationships with every child and every family.
- Communicate with and support students and families through monthly newsletters, midterm and quarterly reports as well as Parent-Teacher conferences.
- Recognize effort, growth and achievement in every learner.
- Provide students with a rigorous curriculum, integrating Core Knowledge and the Indiana Academic standards.

Students will:

- Come to school every day, prepared and ready to do their very best.
- Practice and model for others the behaviors for learning.
- Respect themselves, their classmates, their teachers and our school.
- Work hard and do their personal best at all times.
- Take responsibility for their learning and conduct.

Families will:

- Help children arrive on time and prepared for school every day.
- Read with children, help with homework and check book bags nightly.
- Reach out and respond to teacher and school communications.
- Attend student parent-teacher conferences biannually.
- Talk daily with children about school and encourage them to do their best.
- Participate in school activities, volunteer and visit classrooms.

Student

Teacher

Parent/Guardian

Appendix G: Walker Policy and Release

My signature below represents my consent allowing my child to walk home after school without supervision by Avondale Meadows ("Avondale") following a regularly scheduled school day directly after dismissal for the 2015-2016 school year. I understand the physical nature and risks associated with walking home after school without supervision from Avondale and represent that my child is in good health and proper physical condition to do so. I understand the risks associated with allowing my child to walk home, including but not limited to theft of property, permanent disability, paralysis, death or becoming the victim of a crime, and acknowledge that if I believe the conditions are unsafe, I will immediately discontinue allowing my child to walk home. There may be other risks either not known to me or not readily foreseeable at this time and I fully accept and assume on behalf of my child all such risks and responsibilities for injuries, damages or losses incurred by my child as a result of walking home.

In consideration of my child's opportunity to participate in this activity, I waive and release from any liability for my child's death, disability, personal injury, property damage, property theft, or actions of any kind which may occur while walking home from school, the following persons or entities: Avondale Meadows and its school board, teachers, employees, representatives and agents. I agree to defend, indemnify, hold harmless, and promise not to sue these released parties from any liabilities or claims as a result of participation in this activity, including but not limited to all damages, claims, losses, as well as all legal fees, costs and expenses incurred in the defense of such claims. I further waive all rights of subrogation.

This document shall be construed as broadly possible to the maximum extent permissible under Indiana law. In signing this release, I acknowledge and represent that I HAVE READ THE FOREGOING WALKER POLICY AND RELEASE, UNDERSTAND THAT I AM WAIVING SUBSTANTIAL LEGAL RIGHTS AND SIGN IT VOLUNTARILY.

Children in grade K through 2^{nd} grade must be accompanied by a sibling in $3^{rd} - 8^{th}$ grade in order to participate. In the event that I wish to pick my child up from the regularly scheduled school day instead of having them walk home, I understand that it is my responsibility to notify the school office of that change.

Appendix H: Indoor Air Quality Policies

Indoor Air Quality Coordinator

Carvis Herron, Jr.

United Schools of Indianapolis

3980 Meadows Drive

Indianapolis, IN 4625

317.550.3363

cherron@unitedschoolsindy.org

Chemical Management Plan

Applicability:

This policy applies to all chemicals purchased for use in child occupied school buildings. Steps:

a) Inventory

Each year, the Director of Business Affairs (DBA) conducts a site-wide chemical inventory. During the inventory, expired and unwanted chemicals are identified for proper disposal. Compliance with this policy is reviewed.

b) Purchasing - Chemical purchases shall adhere to the following protocol:

- 1. This school has identified the following procedures and guidelines for purchasing chemicals in an effort to minimize student and staff exposure to chemical hazards:
- 2. All chemicals will be purchased by the DBA or a designated agent.
- 3. First in first out policy is followed.
- 4. This school will not purchase chemicals listed on the Banned Chemical List. (i.e. Mercury of Mercury-containing products.)

Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) will be available in binders kept in the nurse's office at each location. The MSDS files are updated annually and as new chemicals are added to the inventory.

c.) Use

- 1. Chemicals will be mixed and used according to manufacturer's directions. Measuring devices or direct mixing systems are to be used. Any warnings, especially requirements for ventilation are to be followed.
- 2. Only properly trained staff may use hazardous chemicals.
- 3. Required notification procedures will be followed (i.e. pesticide notifications).

d.) Storage

- 1. Secondary containers will not be used to store chemicals unless they are properly labeled and approved for such use.
- Storage areas will be properly ventilated.
 Storage areas will be compatible with the chemicals being stored in them.
 Reactive chemicals will not be stored near each other.
- 5. Hazardous chemicals will be stored in locked areas at all times.

e.) Disposal

- 1. Unwanted, unused, and outdated chemicals should be identified as soon as possible, and not less than annually. They should be marked for disposal.
- 2. Disposal will follow state regulations. Funding for disposal will come from the operating budge
 - t.

f.) Spills, Explosions, and Accidents

- 1. Emergency procedures are followed in the event of an emergency.
 - Call 911
 - Call Indiana Poison Center 1.800.222.1212

Idling Vehicles on School Property

The Indiana IAQ Rule 410 IAC 33-4-3 requires schools to adopt and enforce a policy limiting vehicle idling on school campuses. This policy is to limit vehicle emissions that might be brought into school buildings as mandated by 410 IAC 33-4-3. This will improve the health of students and staff through reduced exposure to these emissions.

Applicability This policy applies to all public and private vehicles on the school campus.

Requirements:

- Drivers of vehicles are to turn off the engine if the vehicle is to be stopped more than twenty minutes. Engine cool down and heat up periods are permitted, but are not to exceed twenty minutes.
- Exceptions are granted to local law enforcement and emergency vehicles. Law enforcement will be required to park their vehicles at least 50 feet from any door of the building.
- This policy will be included in the Family Handbook, the Staff Handbook, and posted on the website.

Violations:

Any individual found to be violating this policy will be referred to the Director of Business Affairs (DBA) who will reach out to onsite local law enforcement for further action.

Live Animals in Schools

Live animals with the exception of fish in aquariums are only to be in the school for educational purposes. At no time will animals considered dangerous be brought into the classrooms.

When an animal is to be brought into a classroom a note will be sent home with the students of that class notifying the parents that an animal will be present. It is the responsibility of the parent to notify the teacher or principal if their student is allergic to the animal.

If after an animal is brought into the classroom, the parent finds their student is allergic to the animal, the school will work with the parent and teacher to resolve the issue. Upon notice, the Principal will confer with the Teacher and determine what options are available including:

- having the student transferred to a different classroom without animals or
- changing to a different species with no allergy problems,
- or not having an animal in the classroom.

The principal has the final authority to determine if it is appropriate to bring an animal into the classroom.

The teacher in charge of the animal shall be responsible for maintaining the animal and its cage.

Pest Control and Use of Pesticides

United Schools of Indianapolis is committed to providing a safe environment for students. It seeks to prevent children from being exposed to pests and pesticides. While pesticides protect children from pests that may be found in the school and its surrounding grounds, under some circumstances they may pose a hazard to children. Therefore, pest control practices may involve a variety of chemical and non-chemical methods that are designed to control pests effectively while minimizing potential pesticide exposure.

United Schools of Indianapolis will:

- A. annually inform parents and staff members of the Corporation's pest control policy as a provision in the staff and student handbook;
- B. provide the name and phone number of the person to contact for information regarding pest control;
- C. establish a registry of parents and staff members who want to receive advance notice of all pesticide use and provide such notice;
- D. provide notice of planned pesticide applications to parents and employees who have requested advance notice;
- E. maintain written record for ninety (90) days of any pesticide applications.

United Schools of Indianapolis will provide notice to those in the registry at least two (2) school days prior to the date and time the pesticide application is to occur unless an emergency is declared. The notice will include the date and time of the pesticide application, the general area where the pesticide is to be applied and the telephone number to contact for more information.

In case of emergency pesticide applications, because of immediate threat to the public health, the school shall give written notice as soon as possible.

Phonet (317) 693-5198 Fax: (317) 803-2367 Meadowes Drive, Indianapoles, Indiana 46205 United introduction of the second s

Regulations Regarding Pesticide Use on School Property

PESTICIDE NOTIFICATION REGISTRY

The Indiana Pesticide Review Board has regulations that impact how school corporations may use pesticides on school grounds. United Schools of Indianapolis follows these guidelines and we are inviting parents and guardians to join our Pesticide Notification Registry. By signing up for this registry, you will be notified at least 48 hours prior to a pesticide application at your child's school, subject to certain exceptions. If you would like to participate, please complete the required information below and return this form to:

United Schools of Indianapolis ATTN: Janie Seivers 3980 Meadows Drive Indianapolis, IN 4625

You will be invited to sign up for this notification EACH SCHOOL YEAR.

PLEASE PRINT LEGIBLY

Parent/ Guardian Name

-Student Name Grade Level

School Name

Appendix I: Weapons on School Premises Policy

No one will possess, conceal, store or use a weapon(s) in school buildings and other buildings owned, occupied or controlled by the school district, on school premises, in school-provided transportation, and at activities under school supervision, subject to the following exceptions:

- These prohibitions will not apply where state or federal law prohibits a school district from restricting an individual's right to possess a firearm or other weapon in such locations, and
- All off-duty sworn, active and certified Indiana law enforcement officers and retired law enforcement officers currently certified may possess, conceal, or store firearms in or on the grounds of a school or within 1,000 feet of the grounds of a District school if otherwise permitted by law.

A weapon is defined as any firearm, whether loaded or unloaded; any device designed as a weapon and capable of producing death or great bodily harm; any ligature (e.g., cord, wire) or other instrumentality used on the throat, neck, nose, or mouth of another person to impede, partially or completely, breathing or circulation of blood; any electric weapon; any destructive device; or any other object which by the manner in which it is used or intended to be used can cause bodily injury or property damage. A look-alike weapon (*e.g.*, toy gun, water gun) may also be considered as a weapon under this policy if it is used, possessed, concealed or stored in a manner that is intended to alarm, intimidate or threaten another person.

When implementing this policy, school administrators and other employees should be aware that stateissued licenses permitting certain private individuals to lawfully carry a handgun or other designated weapons in various public places generally do not permit the possession, carrying or use of such weapons in schools or on school premises.

Students found in violation of this policy will be suspended from school and reported to local law enforcement officials for prosecution under state criminal laws and may be referred to for expulsion. A student who possesses a firearm while at school or while under the supervision of a school authority will be expelled from school for not less than one year as required by state and federal laws. The School may modify this expulsion requirement on a case-by-case basis.

School employees found in violation of this policy will be subject to disciplinary action in accordance with the Employee Handbook and Board policy, and will be reported to local law enforcement officials for prosecution under state criminal laws.

Any other individual found in violation of this policy will be reported to local law enforcement officials for prosecution under state criminal laws and may be banned from school property.

LEGAL REF.:	Indiana Code
	Ind. Code Ann. § 35-47-9-2
	Gun-Free Schools Act of 1994
	18 U.S. Code §(921(a)(3)
	18 U.S. Code $\S(922(q)(2)(A) \& (B)$
S.B. v. Seymour	· Cmty. Sch., 97 N.E.3d 288, 294 (Ind. Ct. App.), reh'g denied (June 21, 2018), transfer
denied, 111 N.E	2.3d 197 (Ind. 2018).

Appendix J: Technology Agreement

The policies, procedures and information within this document apply to all computers and electronic devices provided by United Schools of Indianapolis.

Teachers may set additional classroom rules for the use of any electronic or communications equipment used in their classrooms.

You are receiving a tablet/laptop to enhance understanding, increase your learning, and to prepare you for the world of 21st Century. It was purchased by the school to be used as an educational tool and needs to be used that way during classes and study hall. Failing to use your school laptop/tablet for educational use at any time will result in the loss of computer privileges.

1. RECEIVING YOUR LAPTOP & LAPTOP

CHECK-IN Receiving Your Laptop Laptops will be distributed each fall. Laptops will be collected at the end of each school year for inspection, maintenance, cleaning and software installations.

If your laptop has been damaged or defaced, you will be fined respectively for the damage at the end of each quarter.

If a student laptop is not returned during year-end check-in or upon transferring out of district, the administration will be in charge of seeing this equipment is returned in a timely manner. The student account will be billed for the full cost of the technology.

2. TAKING CARE OF YOUR LAPTOP

Students are responsible for the general care of the laptop they have been issued by the school. Laptops that are broken or fail to work properly must be reported immediately to the school.

2.1 General Precautions

□ No food or drink is allowed next to your laptop while it is in use.

□ Cords, cables, and removable storage devices must be inserted carefully into the laptop.

□ Students should never carry laptops while the screen is open, unless directed to do so by a teacher. Laptops should be shut down before moving them to conserve the battery life.

□ Laptops must remain free of any writing, drawing, stickers, or labels that are not the property of the school.

- □ Laptops must never be left in an unlocked area.
- □ Students are responsible for keeping their laptop's batter charged for the duration of each school day.

□ Failure to comply with the General Precautions will result in being required to "check out" the student laptop from the classroom cart for 2 weeks with the 2nd offense being the loss of laptop privileges for 3 weeks. Students will need to complete all electronic assignments with paper copies during this time.

2.2 Screen Care

The laptop screens can be damaged if subjected to rough treatment. The screens are particularly sensitive to damage from excessive pressure on the screen.

- \Box Do not lean on top of the laptop when it is closed.
- \Box Do not place anything near the laptop that could put pressure on the screen.
- \Box Do not place anything in the carrying case that will press against the cover.
- \Box Do not poke the screen.
- □ Do not place anything on the keyboard before closing the lid. (e.g. pens, pencils, disks).
- □ Clean the screen with a soft, dry cloth or anti-static cloth.
- □ Do not "bump" the laptop against lockers, walls, floors, etc. as it will eventually break the screen.
- \Box Do not carry the laptop by the screen!

2.3 Laptop Keyboard Key Removal

Students who remove and move the keys from their keyboard are interfering with their learning process. In addition, scholars who have keys that need to be replaced will be charged a fee at the end of the school year.

3. USING YOUR LAPTOP AT SCHOOL

Laptops are intended for use at school each day. In addition to teacher expectations for laptop use, school messages, announcements, calendars and schedules may be accessed using the laptop computer. Students must be responsible to bring their laptop to all classes, unless specifically instructed not to do so by their teacher.

3.1 Charging Your Laptop's Battery

It the student's responsibility to make sure their laptop is plugged up each evening to their homeroom teacher's laptop cart. Students who do not charge their laptops will not be able to use their laptop on that particular day.

3.2 Screensavers

Students are expected to keep the standard and default screensaver on their screen. Anything else can cause a classroom disruption.

□ Inappropriate media may not be used as a screensaver.

Presence of guns, weapons, pornographic materials, inappropriate language, alcohol, drug, gang related symbols or pictures will result in disciplinary actions.

3.3 Sound, Music, Games, or Programs

- □ Sound must be muted at all times unless permission is obtained from the teacher for instructional purposes. If headphones are desired, the student is responsible for providing their own pair as stated on the school supply list.
- \Box Music is NOT allowed to be saved on the laptop.
- □ Internet Games are not allowed. NO games can be installed.
- Do not save any music, games, or programs to the hard drive. All software must be district provided. These software programs may be saved to the external sources (Jump/USB drives).

4. MANAGING YOUR FILES & SAVING YOUR WORK

4.1 Saving data to Removable Storage Devices

Students should backup their work at least weekly using removable file storage/flash drive (also on the School Supply List).

4.2 Network Connectivity

United Schools of Indianapolis cannot guarantee that our network will be up and running 100% of the time. In the rare case that the network is down, the school will not be responsible for lost or missing data.

5. ACCEPTABLE USE

5.1 General Guidelines

- (1) Student Computers are for the educational benefit of the student, not to provide entertainment. During classes the computer is to be used strictly for educational purposes. They are not to be used for playing games, watching movies, videos, listening to music, communicating via social media sites or for any other recreational/entertaining uses.
- (2) Students are responsible for the ethical and educational use of the technology resources of the school.
- (3) Access to USI Technology is a privilege and not a right. Each student and/or parent will be required to follow the Use of Technology Resources Policy.

- (4) Transmission of any material that is in violation of any federal of state law is prohibited. This includes, but is not limited to the following: confidential information, copyrighted material, threatening or obscene material, and computer viruses.
- (5) Any attempt to alter data, the configuration of a computer, or the files of another user, without the consent of the individual, campus administrator, or technology administrator, will be considered an act of vandalism.
- (6) By passing or attempting to bypass the schools filtering software to access filtered sites will be subject to disciplinary action.
- (7) Electronic bullying at school will require the school's bullying disciplinary action.
- (8) Students may not play games, load or download software, music, or pictures on their computers.
- (9) All use of the Internet must comply with the school's guidelines.
- 5.2 Privacy and Safety
 - \Box Do not go into chat rooms.
 - □ Do not open, use, or change computer files that do not belong to you.
 - □ Do not reveal your name, phone number, home address, social security number, or passwords of other people.
 - □ If you inadvertently access a web site that contains obscene, pornographic or otherwise offensive material, notify a teacher, Administrator, or Principal immediately so that such sites can be blocked from further access.
- 5.3 Student Responsibilities
 - □ Students are responsible at all times for their laptops, whether at home or school.
 - □ Students may not loan laptop components to other students.
 - □ Students may not play games. Load or download any software, music, pictures, etc. on the laptop.
 - □ Students are responsible for charging and maintaining battery units in laptop daily.
 - □ Laptops come with a standardized image already loaded. These images may not be altered or changed.
 - □ All use of the internet must comply with district guidelines.

Damage Caused by Carelessness

Much of the damage that occurs is the result of student carelessness. Laptop damage resulting from carelessness will be assess the fees listed below.

5.6 Parental Responsibility

□ Parents will be responsible for reviewing the Acceptable Use Policy with their child(ren)/student(s).

5.7 Student Discipline

If a student violates any part of the above policy, he/she will be put on the following disciplinary steps:

- Step 1 Student will lose the option of using his/her laptop for 2 weeks.
- Step 2 Student will lose the option of using his/her laptop for 3 weeks and serve a mandatory detention. The student will be given their laptop back once the 3-week time period is over and they have served their detention.
- Step 3 Student will lose the privilege of using his/her laptop for the remainder of the school year.

6. PROTECTING/STORING YOUR LAPTOP COMPUTER

6.1 Storing Your Laptop

When students are not using their laptops during the school day, they should be stored in the location designated by the school (i.e. lockers, desks or the classroom cart). Nothing should be placed on top of the laptop, when stored in the locker. Students must store their laptop in the laptop cart in their homeroom class each evening and or prior to exiting the school.

6.2 Laptops Left in Unsupervised Areas

Under NO circumstances should laptops be left in unsupervised areas. Unsupervised areas include the school grounds and campus, the lunchroom, computer lab, locker rooms, library, unlocked classrooms, dressing rooms and hallways. Any computer left in these areas is in the danger of being stolen. If a laptop is found in an unsupervised area, it will be taken to the office. This will count as an offense against the student.

7. COST OF REPAIRS

Students will be held responsible for damage to their laptops including, but not limited to: broken screens, hinges, keys, etc.

Student Pledge for Laptop Use

- 1. I will take good care of my laptop.
- 2. I will never leave the laptop unattended.
- 3. I will never loan/share my laptop with other individuals.
- 4. I will know where my laptop is at all times.
- 5. I will place my laptop back in the laptop cart to charge every day.
- 6. I will keep food and beverages away from my laptop since they may cause damage to the computer.
- 7. I will not disassemble any part of my laptop (including the keyboard) or attempt any repairs.
- 8. I will protect my laptop and carry it appropriately.
- 9. I will use my laptop in ways that are appropriate and educational.
- 10. I will not deface my laptop or place decorations on it.
- 11. I understand that my laptop is subject to inspection at any time without notice and remains the property of the school.
- 12. I will follow the policies outlined in the Use of Technology Resources Policy.
- 13. I will be responsible for all damage or loss caused by neglect or abuse.
- 14. I agree to pay for the replacement items in accordance to the list of Cost of Repairs.
- 15. I agree to return the school's laptop in good working condition.

I agree to the stipulations set forth in the above documents including the Laptop Policy, Procedures and Information the Acceptable Use Policy, and the Student Pledge for Laptop Use.

Avondale Meadows Middle School United Schools of Indianapolis 2023-2024 School Calendar

July 2023 Т т Μ W F 3 6 4 7 10 11 12 13 14 NT NT NT NT 21 PD PD PD 28 PD 31 August 2023 М Т W Т F 3 1 4 10 7 8 9 11 14 15 16 17 18 21 22 23 24 25 28 29 30 31 September 2023 Μ т W Т F חי 6 7 8 5 11 12 13 14 15 18 19 20 21 22 25 26 27 28 29 October 2023 Μ Т W Т F 2 S 4 5 PC Х Х Х Х Х 17 18 19 20 23 24 25 26 27 31 30 November 2023 Μ Т W Т F 3 2 6 8 9 10 13 14 15 16 17 20 21 <mark>X</mark> X 27 28 29 30 December 2023 R М Т Т F 4 5 6 7 8 14 15 11 12 13 18 19 20 Х 21

X X X X

July 2023

17-22- New Teacher Orientation24-27-Full Staff PD27- Back to School BBQ



1) First Day of School for ALL students



September 2023

1-PD Day; No Students
 4-Labor Day; No School
 5 - Midterm Progress Reports
 29 - End of 1st Quarter

October 2023

6 - Parent/Teacher Conferences 1st Qtr Report Cards Asynchronous Learning Day
9-13 - Fall Break;No School
16 PD Day; No Students

November 2023

10- Midterm Progress Reports 22-24 - Thanksgiving Break; No School

December 2023

21- End of 2nd Quarter 22-31 Winter Break; No School

182 Student Days 191 Teacher Days

January 2024

- 8-PD Day for Staff Asynchronous Learning Day
- 9 School Resumes
- 12- 2nd Quarter Report Cards
- 15 MLK Day; No School

February 2024

12- Midterm Progress Reports16 - PD Day; No Students19 - Presidents' Day; No School

March 2024

8 - End of 3rd Quarter
22- Parent/Teacher Conference Day
3rd Quarter Report Cards
Asynchronous Learning Day
25-29 - Spring Break; No School

April 2024

PD Day; No Students
 School Reconvenes
 Midterm Progress Reports

May 2024

 (23)- Last Day for Students Half Day; Noon Dismissal End of 4th Quarter
 24 - Teacher Work Day
 27- Memorial Day

June 2024

1- 4th Quarter Report Cards Mailed 19- Juneteenth; Schools Closed

X161718192223242526293031JJKTWTFMTWT125678912131415PDX202122232627282923262728297MTWTFMTWTF11121314151415667815161718192023242526213456789101112151617181920202324252629307891013141516172021222330242122232425262324251617314151617202122233031101112131434567345671011121314111819 <td< th=""><th></th><th>Jan</th><th>uary</th><th>2024</th><th>ļ</th></td<>		Jan	uary	2024	ļ			
PD9101112X161718192223242526293031FUFUEUEUEUEUEUEUEUEUEUEUEUEUEUEUEUEUEUE	М	Т	W	Т	F			
X161718192223242526293031JJKTWTFMTWT125678912131415PDX202122232627282923262728297MTWTFMTWTF11121314151415667815161718192023242526213456789101112151617181920202324252629307891013141516172021222330242122232425262324251617314151617202122233031101112131434567345671011121314111819 <td< td=""><td>Х</td><td>Х</td><td>Х</td><td>Х</td><td>Х</td></td<>	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х			
X161718192223242526293031JJKTWTFMTWT125678912131415PDX202122232627282923262728297MTWTFMTWTF11121314151415667815161718192023242526213456789101112151617181920202324252629307891013141516172021222330242122232425262324251617314151617202122233031101112131434567345671011121314111819 <td< td=""><td>PD</td><td>9</td><td>10</td><td>11</td><td>12</td></td<>	PD	9	10	11	12			
222324252629303172930317F112MTM125678912131415PDX2021232320272829232027282923202728291MTWTFMT3414151112131415121314151614151617181516171819202324252629304151614151617233678930111314151617202122303031131415161720212230311314151673456710111213141718192021	Х				19			
293031IITVTFMTMTF12131415PD12131415PDX202122232627282929MTK7FMTMTFMTMTFMTMTFMTQ21PCXXXXXMTQ21PCXXXXXMTWTFPD234516171819202030-FPD23452030-FPD234510141516172021222030313141516172021222330313141516172021222330313141516173456710111213141718192021	22	23	24	25				
Verture VertureMTWTF11125678912131415PDX20212223262728292MTWTFMT0111518192021PCXXXXX14111213141518192021PCXXXXXXPD2345161718192020232425262930-101113141516171314151617131415161714151617201514151617167891013141516171415161715141516161720211714151618192021				_				
MTWTF111125678912131415PDX202.12.32.326272.82.92.326272.82.92.1MTWTFM70.11.1121.31.41.513192.02.1PCXXXXXMT1.11.21.4111.21.31.41.5131.92.02.12.4XXXXXXMTWTFPD23.01.11.215161.71.81.9203.04567891.01.1131.41.51.61.72021222.03.03.1101.12.13.11.410111.21.31.41114151.6710111.21.31.411131.41.51.612131.41.51.61314151.6714151.6715141.51.6 <td colspan="8"></td>								
ImageImageImageImage5678912131415PDX20212223262728292927282929728297MTWTF111213141518192021PCXXXXXMTWTFMTWTFPD234520232425262030Image101015161718192021222324252030Image101113141516172021222330111314151617202122233031Image21222330311314151617202122233031Image2122233031Image3456710111213141718192021		1 1						
5 6 7 8 9 12 13 14 15 PD X 20 2.1 2.2 2.3 26 27 2.8 29 2.3 V 2.8 2.9 2.3 M T 2.8 2.9 2.3 M T W T F M T W T F M T W T F 11 12 13 14 15 18 19 2.0 2.1 PC X X X X X X M T W T F PD 2 3 4 5 6 16 17 18 19 10 11 15 16 17 18 19 10 16 7 8 9 10					2			
12131415PDX202122232627282929W728297MTWTF45678111213141518192021PCXXXXXVYTFMTWTFPD234589101112151617181922232425262930T7MTWTFMTWTF341516172021222324X28293031TWTF3456710111213141718192021	5	6	7		9			
X 20 21 22 23 26 27 28 29 29 W T 20 21 22 23 M T W T F M T W T F M T W T F M T W T F M T Q 20 21 PC M T X X X X M T W T F M T W T F PD 2 33 4 5 Q 10 11 12 20 21 M T W T F M T W T F M T W T F M T W T F Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q	12				PD			
26272829282928WVVMTWTA567A567111213141213141518192021PCXXXXXVVTFPD23451617181920232425262930-7MTMTFMT10123678910111314151617202122233031TXX30311314151617202122233031TXXX3113141516173456710111213141718192021								
Narch 2024 M T W T F M T S 1 1 4 5 6 7 8 11 12 13 14 15 18 19 20 21 PC X X X X X M T W T F PD 2 3 4 5 8 9 10 11 12 16 17 18 19 20 20 23 24 25 26 29 30 - - - M T W T F 13 14 15 16 17 20 21 22 23 24 25 3 4 5 16 17 20 21 22 23 24 </td <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>20</td>					20			
M T W T F I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	20		-	-				
Image Image <th< td=""><td>NЛ</td><td><u> </u></td><td></td><td></td><td>E</td></th<>	NЛ	<u> </u>			E			
4 5 6 7 8 11 12 13 14 15 18 19 20 21 PC X X X X X X M T W X F PD 2 3 4 5 8 9 10 11 12 15 16 17 18 19 22 23 24 25 26 29 30 - - 15 16 17 18 19 20 23 24 25 26 26 29 30 - - 16 17 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 13 14 15 16 17 14 15 16 13 28 29 30 31 14 15 </td <td>IVI</td> <td>-</td> <td>vv</td> <td>1</td> <td></td>	IVI	-	vv	1				
11 12 13 14 15 18 19 20 21 PC 18 19 20 21 PC X X X X X W X X X X PD 2 3 4 5 8 9 10 11 12 15 16 17 18 19 22 23 24 25 26 29 30 - - 26 20 23 24 25 26 23 24 25 26 26 20 30 - - 26 30 - 12 13 10 11 14 15 16 17 20 21 22 23 24 25 X 28 29 30 31 U<	4	_	c	-				
18 19 20 21 PC X X X X X W T W T F M T W T F PD 2 3 4 5 8 9 10 11 12 15 16 17 18 19 22 23 24 25 26 29 30 - - 27 M T W T F M T W T F M T W T F 3 14 15 16 17 20 21 22 23 24 X 28 29 30 31 1 28 29 30 31 M T W T F 3 4 5		_						
X X X X V V V T K M T W T K PD 2 3 4 5 B 9 10 11 12 15 16 17 18 19 22 23 24 25 26 29 30 V 7 8 20 30 V 7 7 M T W T F M T W T F 31 14 15 16 17 20 21 22 23 24 25 31 14 15 16 17 20 21 22 23 24 X 28 29 30 31 4 5 6 7 3 4 5 6 <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>								
April 2024 M T W T F PD 2 3 4 5 B 9 10 11 12 15 16 17 18 19 22 23 24 25 26 29 30 - - - M T W T F M T W T F M T W T F 3 14 15 16 17 20 21 22 (23) 24 X 28 29 30 31 June EUEUEUEUEUEUEUEUEUEUEUEUEUEUEUEUEUEUEU	18	19	20	21	PC			
M T W T F PD 2 3 4 5 8 9 10 11 12 15 16 17 18 19 22 23 24 25 26 29 30 - - - M T W T F M T W T 6 13 14 15 16 17 20 21 22 (23) 24 X 28 29 30 31 JU 22 (23) 24 33 4 15 16 17 31 20 21 22 (23) 24 X 28 29 30 31 JU X W T F 3 4 5 6 7 10 11	_							
PD 2 3 4 5 8 9 10 11 12 15 16 17 18 19 22 23 24 25 26 29 30 7 M T W T F 13 14 15 16 17 20 21 22 (23) 24 X 28 29 30 10 14 15 16 17 24 X 28 29 30 31 June June Yune Yune Yune M T W T F 3 4 5 6 7 10 11 12 13 14 17 18 19 20 21	Х				Х			
8 9 10 11 12 15 16 17 18 19 22 23 24 25 26 29 30 - - - M T W T F M T W T F 13 14 15 16 17 20 21 22 (23) 24 X 28 29 30 31 June 2U2U (23) 24 X 28 29 30 31 June UU 16 17 X 28 29 30 31 June UU UU 13 14 M T W T F 3 4 5 6 7 10 11 12 13 14 17 18 19		Ap	oril 2	024				
15 16 17 18 19 22 23 24 25 26 29 30 - - - M T W T F M T 1 2 3 6 7 8 9 10 13 14 15 16 17 20 21 22 (23) 24 X 28 29 30 31 Jure 2U24 M T W T M T W T F 3 4 5 6 7 10 11 12 13 14 17 18 19 20 21	M	Ap T	oril 2 W	024 T	F			
29 30 J J M T W T F M T J 2 3 6 7 8 9 10 13 14 15 16 17 20 21 22 (23) 24 X 28 29 30 31 June 2U2U M T W T F 3 4 5 6 7 10 11 12 13 14 17 18 19 20 21	M	А р Т 2	oril 2 W 3	024 Т 4	F 5			
May 2024 M T W T F 1 1 2 3 6 7 8 9 10 13 14 15 16 17 20 21 22 (23) 24 X 28 29 30 31 June 2024 M T W T F 3 4 5 6 7 10 11 12 13 14 17 18 19 20 21	M PD 8	A r T 2 9	0 ril 2 W 3 10	024 T 4 11	F 5 12			
M T W T F i i 1 2 3 6 7 8 9 10 13 14 15 16 17 20 21 22 23 24 X 28 29 30 31 JUTENENENENENENENENENENENENENENENENENENEN	M PD 8 15 22	Ar T 2 9 16 23	0ril 2 W 3 10 17	024 T 4 11 18	F 5 12 19			
Image: system of the system	M PD 8 15 22	Ar T 2 9 16 23 30	W 3 10 17 24	024 T 4 11 18 25	F 5 12 19			
6 7 8 9 10 13 14 15 16 17 20 21 22 23 24 X 28 29 30 31 Jume 2024 M T W T F 3 4 5 6 7 10 11 12 13 14 17 18 19 20 21	M PD 8 15 22 29	Ar T 2 9 16 23 30 M	oril 2 W 3 10 17 24 ay 2	024 T 4 11 18 25 024	F 5 12 19 26			
20 21 22 23 24 X 28 29 30 31 June 2024 M T W T F 3 4 5 6 7 10 11 12 13 14 17 18 19 20 21	M PD 8 15 22 29	Ar T 2 9 16 23 30 M	oril 2 W 3 10 17 24 ay 2 W	024 T 4 11 18 25 024 T	F 5 12 19 26 F			
X 28 29 30 31 June 2024 M T W T F 3 4 5 6 7 10 11 12 13 14 17 18 19 20 21	M PD 8 15 22 29 M	Ar T 2 9 16 23 30 T T	oril 2 W 3 10 17 24 ay 2 W 1	024 T 4 11 18 25 024 T 2	F 5 12 19 26 F 3			
June 2024 M T W T F 3 4 5 6 7 10 11 12 13 14 17 18 19 20 21	M PD 8 15 22 29 M	Ar T 2 9 16 23 30 M T 7 7	w 3 10 17 24 ay 2 W 1 8	024 T 4 11 18 25 024 T 2 9	F 5 12 19 26 F 3			
M T W T F 3 4 5 6 7 10 11 12 13 14 17 18 19 20 21	M PD 8 15 22 29 M M 6 13	App T 2 9 16 23 30 M T T 7 14	w 3 10 17 24 ay 2 W 1 8 15	024 T 4 11 18 25 024 T 2 9 16 (23)	F 12 19 26 F 3 10			
3 4 5 6 7 10 11 12 13 14 17 18 19 20 21	M PD 8 15 22 29 M M 6 13 20	Ar T 2 9 16 23 30 T T 7 14 21 28	oril 2 W 3 10 17 24 w ay 2 W 1 8 15 22 29	Image: matrix of the second state in the s	F 5 12 19 26 F 3 10 17			
10 11 12 13 14 17 18 19 20 21	M PD 8 15 22 29 M 6 13 20 X	Ar T 2 9 16 23 30 T T 7 14 21 28	ay 2 W 3 10 17 24 ay 2 W 1 5 22 29 ne 2	024 T 4 111 18 25 024 T 2 9 16 (23) 30 024	F 55 12 19 266 F 30 100 177 244 31			
17 18 19 20 21	M PD 8 15 22 29 M 6 13 20 X X	Ar T 2 9 16 23 30 M T 7 14 21 28 Ju T	ay 2 W 3 10 17 24 ay 2 W 1 8 15 22 29 me 2 W	024 ⊤ 4 11 18 25 024 ⊤ 2 9 16 (23 30 024 ⊤ 2 30 024 ⊤ 2 7 16 (23 30 024 ⊤ 16 (23 30 024 Т 16 (23 (23) (F 5 12 19 26 F 3 10 17 24 31 F			
	M PD 8 15 22 29 M 6 13 20 X X M 3	Ar T 2 9 16 23 30 T 7 14 21 28 Ju T 4	oril 2 W 3 10 17 24 W 1 1 7 24 W 1 1 8 8 15 22 29 Ne 2 W 5	O24 T 4 11 18 25 O24 T 2 9 16 (23) 30 O24 T 2 9 16 (23) 30 O24 T 6	F 55 122 19 26 F 33 100 177 24 31 F 7			
	M PD 8 15 22 29 M M 13 20 X X M 3 10	Ar T 2 9 16 23 30 T 7 14 21 28 Ju T 4 11	oril 2 W 3 10 17 24 W 1 1 7 24 W 1 1 8 15 22 29 9 ne 2 W 5 12	O24 T 4 11 18 25 024 T 2 9 16 (23) 30 024 T 6 13	F 55 122 19 26 F 33 100 177 24 31 F 7			
	M PD 8 15 22 29 M 6 13 20 X X M 3 10 17	Ar T 2 9 16 23 30 M T 7 14 21 28 JU T 4 11 18	w 3 10 17 24 ay 2 W 1 8 15 22 29 me 2 W 5 12 19	T 4 11 18 25 024 T 2 9 16 (23) 30 024 T 1 6 13 20	F 5 12 19 26 F 3 10 17 24 31 7 7 14			